

Operable Unit 3 Field Sampling Plan

for

Defense Distribution Depot Memphis

September 1995

Prepared for

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Huntsville Division

Prepared by

CHIMHILL

2567 Fairlane Drive Montgomery, Alabama 36116

110479.U3

Executive Summary

Introduction

In October 1992, the Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee (DDMT), was placed on the National Priorities List (NPL) by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Therefore, DDMT must fulfill requirements under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) and National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP). A remedial investigation/feasibility study (RI/FS) will be conducted to accomplish the following:

- Assess the nature and extent of contamination
- Evaluate the risk to human health and the environment
- Screen potential cleanup actions

The Generic Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study Work Plan (Generic RI/FS WP) was prepared to show how the investigation and study will be accomplished. This field sampling plan (FSP) was prepared for Operable Unit 3 (OU-3) as a supplement to the Generic RI/FS WP. The objective of the OU-3 FSP is to present a detailed description of the proposed sampling and analysis activities that will be performed for characterization of the remedial investigation (RI) sites in OU-3 at DDMT.

The ultimate goal of the RI/FS is to select cost-effective cleanup actions that protect public health and the environment. To accomplish this goal, the nature and extent of the release of hazardous substances must be identified, the source of release must be investigated, and proposed cleanup actions must be evaluated. By implementing the field investigation strategies described in the FSPs, the quantity and quality of data collected will aid in achieving the goal of the RI/FS at DDMT.

Site Background and Location

DDMT receives, warehouses, and distributes supplies common to all U.S. military services and some civil agencies, located primarily in the southeastern United States, Puerto Rico, and Panama. The installation covers 642 acres of land in Memphis, Shelby County, Tennessee, in the extreme southwestern portion of the state. The installation contains approximately 110 buildings, 26 miles of railroad track, and 28 miles of paved streets. Approximately 5.5 million square feet of storage space is open. Stored items include food, clothing, electronic equipment, petroleum products, construction materials, and industrial, medical, and general supplies used by all military branches of the U.S. government.

Description of Operable Units

DDMT is divided into four operable units (OUs) for evaluation purposes. OU-1, north of the Main Installation, is called Dunn Field. The Main Installation is divided into three areas: the southwestern quadrant (OU-2), the southeastern quadrant including Lake Danielson and the golf course area (OU-3), and the north-central area (OU-4). Sites identified in OU-1 for investigation resulted from use of the area for landfill operations, mineral stockpiles, pistol range use, and materials storage. Potential contamination of OU-2 may have resulted from spills or releases from the hazardous material storage and recouping area, sandblasting and painting activities, or both. In the recouping area, hazardous material sources of contamination in OU-3 are storage of electrical transformers that contained polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), storage and mixing of pesticides and herbicides, and storm water runoff from the industrial and recreational areas. Principal contamination in OU-4 probably resulted from a wood treatment operation and hazardous material storage.

In OU-3, similar types of contamination were detected during previous sampling activities at the Golf Course Pond (Site 25) and Lake Danielson (Site 26). Sediment samples showed pesticides and metals; in fish tissue samples, pesticides and PCBs were detected. Surface water samples were generally free from the analytes tested. Another of the RI sites in OU-3 was a former storage area for electrical transformers that were found to be contaminated with PCBs. Soil samples collected in the area detected PAHs and pesticides. PCBs were not detected. The other two RI sites in OU-3 (Sites 58 and 59) are areas where pesticides and herbicides were stored and mixed for application to DDMT grounds. At Site 58, no soil data are available, but at Site 59, soil sampling has detected elevated levels of PAHs and pesticides.

In the groundwater at OU-3, the primary types of contaminants detected were VOCs and metals. In two of the three existing monitoring wells, elevated levels of carbon tetrachloride and tetrachloroethene were detected. Metals found at elevated concentrations included lead, antimony, cadmium, and chromium. The existing wells will be sampled and new monitoring wells will be installed and sampled to investigate groundwater contamination at OU-3. The VOC contamination found in the groundwater may be from offsite sources; to investigate that possibility, groundwater will be monitored along the DDMT facility boundary upgradient of the wells that have shown VOC contamination.

The results of the sampling activities that will be conducted may indicate the need for additional monitoring wells. If required, additional wells will be installed during the next phase of field investigations at DDMT.

Summary of FSP

This FSP describes the DDMT facility, history of OU-3, data gaps, and data needed for OU-3. General information is also provided on OU-3 location, geography and topography, meteorology, surface water hydrology, geology, hydrogeology, and land use. Additionally, this FSP describes the sampling strategy and sampling plan for the RI sites in OU-3. The final section of the plan describes the data needs required to propose remedial alternatives for OU-3. The purpose of the activities proposed in this FSP are as follows:

- To characterize potential releases from the site
- To assess the nature and extent of soil and groundwater contamination attributable to past operations
- To support a baseline risk assessment (BRA)
- To gather data to evaluate the feasibility of remedial actions for this site

Sampling Strategy

A cost-effective sampling strategy has been developed to perform an RI/FS at DDMT. This FSP uses an observational approach to collecting field data and making field-based decisions to achieve the goals of the facility. The approach presented is intended to support a recommendation of one of the following options for each RI site:

- Site upgrade (FS, Remedial Design, and Remedial Action [RA])
- Site downgrade (support No Further Action)
- Interim Remedial Action (IRA) or Early Removal

To support the development of recommendations in a timely manner, soil, sediment, surface water, and groundwater samples will be collected at OU-3 and analyzed using quick-turnaround methods from a fixed-base laboratory (FBL). A minimum of 10 percent of the quick-turnaround samples (Level 2) will be sent to the laboratory for Level 3 confirmational analysis. The Level 2 and Level 3 data will be used for comparison to regulatory levels and calculated risk levels to aid in supporting the appropriate recommendation for action at a given site.

Proposed Sampling

The OU-3 FSP describes RI sites that have been identified on the basis of their potential for contamination as a result of past practices. Surface soil, subsurface soil, surface water, and groundwater samples are proposed to be taken at the sites. Surface soil and

sediment samples will provide information to assess the horizontal extent of contamination and will provide data to evaluate risk associated with the exposure pathways. Soil borings will also be installed at the proposed site locations, and subsurface samples will be collected from the borings to assess the vertical extent of contamination.

Surface water sampling will help to evaluate the source of the contamination that has been detected in the water body sediments. The potential source areas (onsite industrial area or onsite areas adjacent to surface water bodies) have not been characterized; therefore, the source of contaminants has not been identified.

Groundwater samples will be collected from existing wells in OU-3 to assess whether the RI sites have affected groundwater quality. Monitoring wells will also be installed along the property boundary of DDMT to evaluate whether offsite sources are contributing to contamination found at DDMT, as part of the work described in Section 4 of the OU-4 FSP.

By implementing the OU-3 FSP, the RI/FS can be conducted in a cost-effective, timely manner. Additionally, data will be obtained to support an evaluation of remedial alternatives for cleanup of OU-3 at DDMT.

Contents

Sectio	n Page
Execu Acron	tive Summary
1.0	Introduction
	1.1 Objective
	1.2 Regulatory Requirements
	1.3 Facility and Site Status 1-2
	1.4 Elements of the Field Sampling Plan.
2.0	Facility and Operable Unit Description.
	2.1 Location
	2.2 Operable Unit Description
	2.3 Geography and Topography
	2.4 Meteorology
	2.5 Surface Water Hydrology 2-6
	2.6 Geology
	2.7 Hydrogeology
	2.8 Land Use
	2.9 History and Existing Data
	2.10 Operable Unit 3 Data Gaps
3.0	Sampling Strategy for Operable Unit 3 Remedial Investigation 3-1
	3.1 Structure of Operable Unit 3 Investigation
	3.2 Data Quality Objectives
	3.3 Data Comparisons
	3.4 Background Data
	3.5 Preliminary Identification of ARARs and Screening PRGs
	3.6 Risk-based Preliminary Remediation Goals
	3.7 Statistical Data Comparison
4.0	Sampling Plan
	4.1 Sampling Summary 4-1
	4.2 Site 25: Golf Course Pond
	4.3 Site 26: Lake Danielson
	4.4 Site 48: Former PCB Transformer Storage Area
	4.5 Site 58: Pad 267 (Pesticides, Herbicides)
	4.6 Site 59: Building 273 (Pesticides, Cleaners)

.

.

125 7 Contents (cont'd.)

Section

Page

....

5.0	Additional Data Collection	5-1
	5.1 Investigation of Potential Contamination near MW-24	5-1
	5.2 Fluvial Aquifer Characteristics	5-1
	5.3 Preliminary Data Needs for Remedial Alternatives	5-2
	5.4 Water Level Measurements	5-5
	5.5 Quality Assurance/Quality Control in the Field	5-5

Appendixes

- B: Existing Sampling DataC: Sample Collection Procedures for Surface Water and Sediments

Contents (cont'd.)

125 8

-

Tables

Number

1-1	OU-3 (Southeast Water Shed of Main Installation)
	Federal Facility Agreement Site Status 1-3
2-1	Data Gaps and Future Data Collection for OU-3
3-1	ARARs and PRGs Definitions
4-1	Samples to Be Collected by Site in OU-3 4-2
4-2	Collection and Analysis of Site 25 Samples (by Media) 4-6
4-3	Collection and Analysis of Site 26 Samples (by Media)
4-4	Collection and Analysis of Site 48 Samples (by Media)
4-5	Collection and Analysis of Site 58 Samples (by Media)
4-6	Collection and Analysis of Site 59 Samples (by Media)
5-1	Preliminary Screening of Remedial Alternatives for RI Sites 5-3

Figures

DDMT Location in Memphis Metropolitan Area 2-2
Operable Unit Locations
OU-3 Site Locations
Surface Topography of DDMT and Surrounding Area of
Memphis, Tennessee
OU-3 Topographic Contours, Storm Drainage, and Sanitary
Sewer Layout
Study Area Surface Drainage
General Geologic Cross Section of the Memphis Area
Cross Section E-E', West to East
November 1993 Water Table Surface Map of the Fluvial Aquifer
Land Use
OU-3 Logic Diagram
Previous Sampling Locations at RI Sites 25, 26, 48, 58, and 59 4-3
Proposed Sampling Locations for RI Sites 25, 26, 48, 58, and 59 4-8

Acronyms

ARARs	Applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements
bls	Below land surface
BRA	Baseline risk assessment
CEHND	Corps of Engineers, Huntsville Division
CERCLA	Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
	Liability Act
COC	Contaminant of concern
DDE	Dichlorodiphenyldichloroethlene
DDMT	Defense Distribution Depot Memphis, Tennessee
DDT	Dichlorodiphenyltrichloroethane
DLA	Defense Logistics Agency
DOI	Department of Interior
DQO	Data quality objective
DRMO	Defense Reutilization Marketing Office
EPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency
ER	Early removal
ESE	Environmental Science and Engineering
FBL	Fixed-base laboratory
FFA	Federal Facilities Agreement
FR	Federal Register
FRL	Final remediation level
FS	Feasibility study
FSP	Field sampling plan
HASP	Health and Safety Plan
HQ/HI	Hazard quotient/hazard index
HRS	Hazardous Ranking System
IRA	Interim remedial action
μm	Micrometer
MCL	Maximum contaminant level
NCP	National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution
	Contingency Plan
NFA	No further action
NGVD	National geodetic vertical datum
NPL	National Priorities List
OU	Operable unit
OVA	Organic vapor monitor
PAH	Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbon
PCB	Polychlorinated biphenyl
рръ	Parts per billion
ppm	Parts per million
PRG	Preliminary remediation goal
QA/QC	Quality assurance/quality control

.

•

.

.

Acronyms (cont'd.)

QAPP	Quality assurance project plan
QC	Quality control
RA	Remedial action
RAL	Removal action level
RCRA	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
RFA	RCRA Facility Assessment
RGO	Remedial goal option
RI	Remedial investigation
RI/FS	Remedial investigation/feasibility study
RI/FS WP	RI/FS Work Plan
ROD	Record of decision
SMP	Site Management Plan
TCL/TAL	Target compound list/Target analyte list
TDEC	Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation
ТНІ	Target hazard index
TOC	Total organic carbon
TRL	Target risk level
TSS	Total suspended solids
UCL	Upper confidence limit
USAEHA	U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency
VOC	Volatile organic compound

125 10

۰.

TAB

Section - Introduction

Ĥ

ľ

1.0

Numerica di

•

:

-

•

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Objective

The objective of this Field Sampling Plan (FSP) for Operable Unit 3 (OU-3) is to present a detailed description of the proposed sampling and analysis activities that will be performed for characterization of the sites in OU-3 at the Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee (DDMT).

The purpose of this effort is as follows:

- To characterize potential releases from the sites
- To assess the nature and extent of soil, sediment, and groundwater contamination attributable to past operations
- To gather data to evaluate the feasibility of remedial actions for the sites
- To evaluate risk to human health and the environment

Once the site has been characterized, data will be evaluated and used to make decisions concerning remediation of OU-3. Possible decisions include downgrading the site to a no further action (NFA) site, recommending the site for early removal (ER), or selecting a remedial alternative to address contamination at the site. The southeast section of the Main Installation has been designated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and DDMT as OU-3.

1.2 Regulatory Requirements

DDMT was issued a Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) Part B permit (No. TN4 210 020 570) by EPA's Region IV and the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) on September 28, 1990. Subsequently, in accordance with Section 120(d)(2) of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), 42 U.S.C. 9620(d)(2), EPA prepared a final Hazardous Ranking System (HRS) Scoring Package for DDMT. On the basis of the final HRS score of 58.06, EPA added DDMT to the National Priorities List (NPL) by publication in the *Federal Register* (FR), 57 FR 47180 No. 199, on October 14, 1992. The Remedial Investigation (RI) presented herein, and future investigations, are intended to satisfy the requirements of CERCLA, the National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP), and RCRA Part B permit.

DDMT has entered into a Federal Facilities Agreement (FFA) between the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA), EPA, and TDEC. This agreement establishes a procedural

framework and schedule for developing, implementing, and monitoring appropriate response actions at DDMT in accordance with existing regulations and for achieving RCRA/CERCLA integration. As a result of DDMT's status as an NPL site, it was agreed that the investigation of all applicable sites would proceed under the CERCLA process for remediation (RI, feasibility study [FS], proposed plan, record of decision [ROD], remedial design, remedial action, or NFA).

1.3 Facility and Site Status

As a result of the NPL status, the required site-specific investigations, and the FFA, the facility has been geographically delineated into four operable units (OUs). OU-specific FSPs are being prepared for OUs 1, 2, 3, and 4. These OU-specific FSPs will provide guidelines for conducting the remedial investigations/feasibility studies (RI/FSs) for each of the OUs. These OU-specific plans will address sites that have been known to have past releases as a result of facility operations. Schedules for completing specific tasks during the process have been submitted separately in the *Site Management Plan (SMP)*.

DDMT is conducting RI/FS activities at OU-3 in conformance with the requirements of CERCLA and the FFA. In addition, elements of DDMT's RCRA permit dictate that DDMT undertake a study to confirm the absence or presence of contamination at locations where hazardous or toxic wastes were managed or disposed. This FSP concurrently addresses the sites within OU-3 that have been previously identified as requiring an RI (i.e., Sites 48, 58, and 59). The remainder of the identified sites within OU-3 are proposed for one of four categories: screening site, NFA site, feasibility study site, or ER site (Table 1-1). Activities related to these sites will be addressed in the *Screening Sites FSP, NFA Report, ER Memorandum*, or other future work plans. Each of these documents will be submitted to TDEC and EPA for review. Table 1-1 presents a summary of all the sites at OU-3 and cites the specific document that will address future work planned for each site.

1.4 Elements of the Field Sampling Plan

This FSP is written as a supplement to the generic (facilitywide) RI/FS work plans for DDMT. Details not included in this plan can be found in the generic work plans. These work plans were provided as separate documents and are listed below:

- Generic RI/FS Work Plan (Generic RI/FS WP)
- Generic Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP)
- Generic Health and Safety Plan (HASP)

The FSP defines the sampling and data gathering that will be conducted. The structure of the FSP includes all known site conditions and history; proposed site-specific sampling,

	OIL3 (Southeast Water Shed	of Main Inst	allation)			
	Federal Facility	greement				
	Site Statt	u Hi Tennere				
			DI DADAT	00,4		Document Addressing
Number	Description	Number	Number	Status	Current Status	Future Work
е С	Paint Sprny Booths (1 of 3 total-Bidg, 260)	30	1	NFA	NFA	NFA Repart
9	Safety Kleen Units-4 of 9 total units (Bldgs. 253, 469, 490, 689)	40	1	NFA	NFA	NFA Report
41	Satellite Drum Accumulation Area-2 of 4 total areas (Bldgs, 469, 260)	41		NFA	NFA	NFA Report
49	Medical Waste Storage Area	49	46	NFA	NFA	NFA Report
25	Golf Course Pond	25	42	RFI	FS	OU-J FSP
- 26	Lake Danielson	26	43	RFI	FS	OU-3 FSP
48 48	Former PCB Transformer Storage Area	48	6E	PRFI	RI	OU-3 FSP
8	Pesticides, herbicides (Pad 267)	1	38	ı	RI	OU-3 FSP
59	Pesticides, cleaners (Bldg. 273)	1	40	1	RI	OU-3 FSP
5	Lake Danielson Outlet Ditch	AOC-B	1	PRFI	Screening	Screening Site FSP
2	Colf Course Pond Outlet Ditch	AOC-C	•	PRJ	Screening	Screening Site FSP
65	XXCC-3 (Bidg. 249)	1	¥	1	Screening	Screening Site FSP
\$	POL (Bldg. 253)	1	35	1	Screening	Screening Site FSP
67	MOGAS (Bidg. 253)	1	36	I	Screening	Screening Site FSP
89	POL (Bldg. 263) (20 x 40 ft)	1	37	4	Screening	Screening Sile FSP
69	2,4-D, M2A1 & M4 Flamethrower Liquid Fuels (surface appl.)	1	41	۰	Screening	Screening Site FSP
73	2,4 Dichlerophenoxyacetic Acid (all grassed areas)	1	53	L	Screening	Screening Sile FSP
75	Unknown Westes near Bidg. 689	1	50		Screening	Screening Site FSP
36	Unknown Westes near Bidg, 690	-	51	1	Screening	Screening Site FSP
17	Unknown Westes near Bidg. 689 & 690	-	52		Screening	Screening Site FSP
78	Alcohol, Acctone, Talvene, Naptha; Hydrofluoric Acid Spill	•	53	1	Screening	Screening Site FSP
FS FSP MOGAS NFA OU-3 PCB POL PRFI	 Fcasibility Study. Field sampling plan. Military operation gasoline. Military operation. No further action. No further action. No further action. RUFS No further action. RUFS No further action. RUFS No further action. RUFS RUFS No further action. RUFS RUFS<td> RCRA Fa RCRA fat Rcmedial Rcmedial Rcmedial Rcmedial Rcmedial Site numt Site numt Site numt </td><td>cility Assess athy investig investigation te manugerne te or site sta fiate.</td><td>nent. ation. Afcasibility at unit. tus not iden</td><td>study. úfied in the RFA l</td><td>Report or R.I. Report,</td>	 RCRA Fa RCRA fat Rcmedial Rcmedial Rcmedial Rcmedial Rcmedial Site numt Site numt Site numt 	cility Assess athy investig investigation te manugerne te or site sta fiate.	nent. ation. Afcasibility at unit. tus not iden	study. úfied in the RFA l	Report or R.I. Report,

1-3

ï

abe f to study that the series

9/29/95

125

14

analysis, intended data use, and data quality level; and a discussion of required field actions that are not site-specific. Sample designation, sample equipment and procedures, and sample handling and analysis are addressed in the QAPP (ref. 1).

.

TAB

ſ

2000

Service State

and a second

.

.

•

Section 2 - Facility & Operable Unit Decsription

2.0 Facility and Operable Unit Description

2.1 Location

DDMT covers 642 acres of land in Shelby County, Memphis, Tennessee, in the extreme southwestern portion of the state. Approximately 5 miles east of the Mississippi River and just northeast of the Interstate 240-Interstate 55 junction, DDMT is in the southcentral section of Memphis, approximately 4 miles southeast of the Central Business District and 1 mile northwest of Memphis International Airport. Airways Boulevard borders DDMT on the east and provides primary access to the installation. Dunn Road, Ball Road, and Perry Road serve as the northern, southern, and western boundaries, respectively, of the Main Installation. Dunn Field extends north to Person Avenue. Figure 2-1 shows the installation's location within the Memphis area.

OU-3 consists of approximately 320 acres and is located in the southeast quadrant of the Main Installation at DDMT. It is bounded by C Street on the north, 5th and 6th Streets on the west, Ball Road on the south (installation boundary), and Airways Boulevard on the east (installation boundary). The location of OU-3 in relation to the entire DDMT facility and other proposed OUs is shown in Figure 2-2.

2.2 Operable Unit Description

OU-3 is defined as the southeastern water shed of DDMT's Main Installation. OU-3 contains a total of 21 identified sites: 4 NFA sites, 3 RI sites, 2 FS sites, and 12 screening sites. The sites identified for RI in OU-3 include the former polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) transformer storage area (Site 48); Pad 267, used for storing and mixing pesticides and herbicides (Site 58); and Building T-273, used for mixing pesticides and herbicides (Site 59). Studies on Lake Danielson and the Golf Course Pond have shown that the sediment and fish in these water bodies exhibit pesticides and PCBs (ref. 2). Since these water bodies receive surface runoff from the surrounding industrial and recreational areas, OU-3 contains the entire southeast water shed of DDMT's Main Installation. These two sites have been identified as FS sites; however, some limited source identification sampling will occur as part of the RI field effort. Figure 2-3 shows the location and status of each of the identified sites in OU-3. A brief description of each site along with its status is also provided in Table 1-1.

2.3 Geography and Topography

DDMT is divided into two areas, Dunn Field and the Main Installation, each with its own distinct land surface and use-related features. Figure 2-4 shows the topographic features of DDMT and surrounding areas. About 57 percent of the Main Installation is developed land. Most of the Main Installation's land area has been graded, paved, and built up.









Some of the few remaining unpaved areas are used for open storage of various materials and equipment. The only significant grassed, treed area is the golf course, located in the Main Installation's southeastern sector. The Main Installation's topography is nearly level. Surface elevations range from approximately 316 ft national geodetic vertical datum (NGVD) in the Defense Reutilization and Marketing Office (DRMO) storage yard next to Dunn Avenue to 267 ft NGVD in the low area below Lake Danielson's earthen dam. Figure 2-5 shows the topography of OU-3.

Two perennial surface water bodies are located within the geographic boundaries of OU-3 (Lake Danielson and the Golf Course Pond). The topography of the entire OU is generally flat, with the only noticeable changes in elevation occurring in the golf course area and the wooded area just south of Lake Danielson.

Dunn Field lies just north of the Main Installation and Dunn Avenue and consists of approximately 64 acres of undeveloped land. About one-half the area is grassed; the remaining area contains crushed rock and paved surfaces. The land appears to slope to the west from the bauxite piles in the center of the field. Surface elevations range from a low of 273 ft NGVD at the north outfall/installation boundary fenceline to 315 ft NGVD in the field's approximate center.

2.4 Meteorology

This area of Tennessee experiences a continental climate with humid, warm summers and cold winters. The Memphis area receives an annual average of 50 inches of precipitation (30-year period of record; ref. 4). Normally, precipitation is heaviest during the winter and early spring. The net annual precipitation (derived from gross annual precipitation less evaporation and runoff) estimated for the Memphis area is 9 inches (ref. 4).

2.5 Surface Water Hydrology

Installation surface drainage is accomplished by overland flow to swales, ditches, concrete-lined channels, and a storm drainage system. Figure 2-6 illustrates the surface drainage features, installation drainage areas, and local streams associated with the DDMT facility. Figure 2-5 shows the locations of the storm water and sanitary sewers within OU-3.

Most of DDMT is level with, or above, surrounding terrain; therefore, DDMT receives little runoff from adjacent areas. DDMT does receive runoff from the property to the northeast of Dunn Field. Property to the southwest of OU-2 is also at a higher elevation than DDMT, but storm water drainage systems along the roadway would capture the majority of runoff.





Most Dunn Field drainage is achieved by overland flow to the adjacent properties to the north and west. The Main Installation's surface drainage is achieved by overland flow to a storm drainage system. The primary drainage directions and outfall locations are to the west (Tarrent Branch), to the east (unnamed ephemeral stream), and to the south (unnamed ephemeral stream).

The potential for flooding of DDMT is relatively low. DDMT surface elevations (276 to 316 ft NGVD; ref. 3) are well above the average Mississippi River alluvial valley flood levels (185 to 230 ft NGVD). Furthermore, the surface elevations of DDMT are equal to or higher than elevations of adjacent properties. More detail on the surface water hydrology of DDMT can be found in Section 2.4.3 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3).

Two perennial surface water bodies, Lake Danielson and the Golf Course Pond, are located within the geographic boundaries of OU-3. Lake Danielson consists of an unlined, manmade pond approximately 4 acres in surface area and approximately 15 ft deep at the deepest point. Lake Danielson receives storm water runoff from the central area (approximately 65 acres) of DDMT. Storm water from the catchment area enters Lake Danielson via a 48-inch diameter pipe in the northwest corner of the lake. A smaller amount of storm water is contributed via sheet flow from the area immediately surrounding Lake Danielson (ref. 5). Overflow from this impoundment flows to an open, concrete-lined storm drain that eventually drains into Nonconnah Creek, a tributary of the Mississippi River.

The Golf Course Pond is an unlined, manmade pond approximately 75 ft wide and 125 ft long with an earthen dam. The pond receives surface water runoff from the golf course and the southeast portion of the installation. Storm water enters the pond in one of two ways: through sheet flow from the surrounding land area and through an 8-inch-diameter and a 36-inch-diameter storm water drainage pipe. Overflow from this impoundment flows to an open, concrete-lined storm drain that eventually drains into Nonconnah Creek, a tributary of the Mississippi River.

2.6 Geology

2.6.1 Regional Geology

The area of Memphis, Tennessee, straddles two major subdivisions of the Atlantic Coastal Plain Physiographic Province. Figure 2-7 shows a general geologic cross section of the Memphis area. DDMT is situated within a major structural feature termed the Mississippi Embayment. This area is described as a youthful to mature, belted coastal plain (ref. 6).

Information describing major regional geologic units has been obtained from Wells (ref. 7), Moore (ref. 8), Nyman (ref. 9), and Graham and Parks (ref. 6). The Quaternary and Tertiary strata in the Memphis area are composed of loosely consolidated



deposits of marine, fluvial, fluvioglacial, and deltaic sediments. In Tennessee, unconsolidated sediments (Cretaceous through Quaternary) reach their maximum thickness at Memphis, where they range from 2,700 to 3,000 ft. Further information on regional geology can be found in Section 2.4.5.1 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3).

2.6.2 Geology of Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

The geology of DDMT was investigated by reviewing the existing published geologic information and work performed during 1990 RI activities (ref. 10). On the basis of the soil borings and monitoring wells installed during the RI, cross sections were developed (by others) that illustrate the postulated occurrence, attitude, and relationships of the geologic units encountered. The cross sections are generalizations, and local variations in subsurface conditions should be expected. The strata encountered during RI activities (ref. 10) included loess, fluvial deposits, Jackson Formation/Upper Claiborne Group clays (based on interpretation), and what has been interpreted to be the Memphis Sand Formation. Figure 2-8 illustrates a geologic cross section of DDMT that includes the OU-3 area.

The uppermost geologic unit at or near ground surface in the study area is loess (eolian deposits consisting of brown silty clay; clayey silt, and fine sandy clayey silt). Loess was encountered at all drilling locations. This unit is described as a brown to yellowish low plasticity silt (ML) or low plasticity clay (CL).

Fluvial deposits underlie the loess and were encountered at all drilling locations during the RI activities (ref. 10). The unit is composed of three generalized members that can be traced through the study area:

- Silty clay, silty sandy clay, or clayey sand (upper layer)
- Poorly graded (less than 5 percent silt or clay), fine to medium-grained sand
- Gravelly sand

Beneath the silty clay/sandy clay/clayey sand are layers of sand and sandy gravel. These layers may alternate. The sand layers range from poorly graded to well graded, fine- to coarse-grained, very well sorted to poorly sorted quartz grains. The lower sand layers are poorly graded and are tan to white. The sand layers show a coarsening downwards into a gravelly sand, with chert being the primary gravel constituent.

Clayey soils that have been interpreted as the Jackson Formation/Upper Claiborne Group were penetrated in three soil borings and two monitoring wells. This unit is represented in the study area by a distinctive stiff gray or orange, low to high plasticity lignitic clay. This member underlies the fluvial deposits and is a regionally significant confining unit.



The upper portion of the Memphis-Sand Formation was encountered in the same five borings as was the Jackson Formation/Upper Claiborne Group. This formation is represented in the study area by a gray, very fine-grained, silty sand. More detailed information on DDMT geology is available in Section 2.4.5.2 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3).

2.7 Hydrogeology

2.7.1 Regional Hydrogeology

The Memphis area is located within a region that has several aquifers of local and regional importance. These aquifers are identified in descending order by their geologic names:

- Alluvial Aquifer
- Fluvial (Terrace) Aquifer
- Memphis ("500-ft") Sand Aquifer
- Fort Pillow ("1400-ft") Sand Aquifer

The Alluvial Aquifer's distribution is limited to the channels of primary streams; therefore, it does not occur at DDMT. The Fluvial, Memphis Sand, and Fort Pillow Sand aquifers underlie the installation.

2.7.2 DDMT Hydrogeology

Site-specific hydrogeologic conditions were investigated by physical inspection, test borings, monitoring well installation, groundwater quality monitoring, and direct measurement of in situ hydraulic properties during the RI activities (ref. 10).

The uppermost hydrogeologic unit encountered at DDMT is the loess. While not usually a water-bearing unit, this material is of interest to this investigation because it tends to limit precipitation infiltration (recharge) to significant underlying aquifers where the loess remains intact and undisturbed. Sandy zones occurring within the loess may become seasonal "perched" water-bearing zones that contain water for short periods after rainfall events. Typically, the perched zone consisted of a fine sandy layer enclosed within the loess, approximately 20 ft below land surface (bls). These perched water zones are temporal and are not considered part of the Fluvial Aquifer. The Fluvial Aquifer is not used as a drinking water source within the City of Memphis. The Memphis Sand Aquifer underlies the Fluvial Aquifer and is the primary source of drinking water for the City of Memphis. Fluvial (Terrace) deposits underlie the loess within the installation. The fluvial deposits form the site's shallow (water table) aquifer, which ranges in depth from 40 to 131 ft at DDMT. Recharge to this unit is primarily from the infiltration of rainfall (ref. 6). According to the water levels measured in the monitoring wells during RI activities (ref. 10), only the base of the unit is saturated. Published seasonal water levels indicate that the groundwater levels fluctuate several feet. Figure 2-9 presents the water table surface map of the Fluvial Aquifer at DDMT. The map was compiled by contouring water levels recorded by Environmental Science and Engineering (ESE) in November 1993 (ref. 11). The groundwater flow direction in the Fluvial Aquifer within OU-3 is to wards the depression in the top of the clay unit on the northern portion of DDMT. Depths to Fluvial Aquifer groundwater generally range from about 60 to 100 ft. The groundwater flow direction in the Memphis Sand Aquifer is westward toward the Allen Well Field.

The Jackson Formation/Upper Claiborne Group was encountered at more than half the monitoring well and soil boring installation locations. The unit is significant because it is a regionally important confining bed separating shallow water-bearing zones from underlying major aquifers (ref. 9). Where encountered, the elevation of the confining unit's upper surface ranges from 223 ft to 118 ft NGVD. An investigation to evaluate the presence of the confining unit and hydraulic communication (if any) between the Fluvial Aquifer and the Memphis Sand Aquifer is planned during the OU-4 RI activities. The continuity and thickness of the confining unit can be only estimated from the available information. The maximum and minimum thicknesses of the confining unit encountered by soil borings in OU-3 are 40 and 10 ft, respectively.

The Memphis Sand Aquifer represents the region's most important source of water resources. The aquifer is reported to underlie the entire Memphis area. At DDMT, the top of the Memphis Sand Aquifer is approximately 125 to 150 ft NGVD. In the monitoring wells completed in the aquifer at DDMT, the potentiometric level ranges from 143 to 146 ft NGVD. Flow in the unit is directed generally westward toward the Allen Well Field, a major local pumping zone.

The Fort Pillow Sand Aquifer (also called the "1400-ft sand") underlies DDMT and the Memphis region at great depth, on the order of 1,400 ft bls, and is reported to average some 200 ft thick in the study area. The unit contains groundwater under strong artesian (confined) conditions. The Fort Pillow Sand Aquifer potentiometric level in the DDMT area was interpolated to be on the order of 180 ft NGVD in the fall of 1985 (ref. 6).

Additional information on the hydrogeology of DDMT, including information on groundwater use and quality, can be found in Section 2.4.6.2 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3).



2.8 Land Use

2.8.1 Surrounding Area

DDMT is located in south-central Memphis in an area of widely varying uses. Most of the land surrounding DDMT is intensely developed. To the north of DDMT are the rail lines of the Frisco Railroad and Illinois Central Gulf Railroad. Large industrial and warehousing operations are located along the rail lines in this area. A triangular area immediately to the north of DDMT along Dunn Road also contains several industrial firms. Formerly a residential neighborhood, the area is characterized by small commercial and manufacturing uses with a few single-family residences remaining.

Airways Boulevard is the most heavily traveled thoroughfare in the vicinity and is developed with numerous small, commercial establishments. Businesses along Airways Boulevard are typical of highway commercial districts. Other commercial establishments are located to the north, south, and west of DDMT. Most are small groceries or convenience stores that serve their immediate neighborhoods.

DDMT is surrounded by residential development, including single- and multi-family residences. Numerous small church buildings and schools are scattered throughout the area. Figure 2-10 provides land use information for the area surrounding DDMT. Further detail on surrounding land use can be found in Section 2.4.7 of the Generic RI/FS WP (ref. 3).

2.8.2 Operable Unit 3

OU-3 is characterized by a variety of uses: light industrial activities (maintenance, warehousing, facilities engineering shops, former gasoline station); administrative areas (headquarters building, parking lots, and other office buildings); recreational areas (golf course, swimming pool, picnic area); and a small family housing area for active duty military personnel. The most prominent features of OU-3 include 16 World War II vintage (a.k.a. "typical") warehouses used for bulk storage; 6 Korean War vintage (typical) warehouses used for bin storage; Lake Danielson and the Golf Course Pond; the DDMT Golf Course; and the administration, headquarters, and family housing areas. Most of the land area within OU-3 has been graded, paved, and heavily built up. The only vegetated areas are the perimeter areas (south of Buildings 690 and 490) and the majority of the southeast corner of OU-3 (Lake Danielson, the golf course, family housing area).



2.9 History and Existing Data 125 34

A discussion of the history of activities and a summary of the existing data for the five RI sites in OU-3 are provided in Section 4.0. Sampling data for OU-3 was collected during the RI activities (ref. 10) in 1990 and during the ESE groundwater monitoring field effort (ref. 11). Details of the chemical analyses are provided in Appendix B.

The following activities either occur now or are reported to have occurred in the past at the RI sites:

- Storage of electrical transformers that contain PCBs
- Fire tank truck testing
- Pesticide and herbicide storage
- Pesticide and herbicide mixing and application

2.10 Operable Unit 3 Data Gaps

Using existing data, knowledge of the site operations, and DDMT records, a review was conducted to evaluate where data were insufficient to achieve the objectives of the RI/FS process. The review process resulted in identification of data gaps that need to be addressed during the RI/FS. The primary objectives for conducting field sampling at the OU-3 sites is to characterize potential releases from the sites; assess the nature and extent of soil and groundwater contamination; identify sources of sediment contamination; collect data to support an evaluation of risk to human health and the environment; and gather data to evaluate the feasibility of remedial actions. The data gaps and information needed for OU-3 are identified in Table 2-1.

Subsequent sections of this FSP describe data needs, existing data, and future sampling requirements for each site.

Table 2-1 Data Gaps and Future Data Collection for OU-3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee			
Data Need/Use	Existing Data	Future Data Collection	
Evaluate the vertical and horizontal extent of soil contamination at each of the RI sites	Installation records and some historical sampling data	Install soil borings and analyze surface and subsurface soil samples	
Evaluate whether releases from a site have adversely affected Fluvial Aquifer groundwater quality	Sampling results from monitoring wells in OU-3	Sample existing wells; install and sample additional upgradient and downgradient monitoring wells, as necessary	
Conduct a BRA for exposure to surface soils and/or sediments at the applicable RI sites	Some surface soil data from previous investigations	Collect a minimum number of surface soil and sediment samples for statistical comparisons	
Investigate source areas for lake contaminants in sediments and fish	Some sampling data; fish tissue analysis from AEHA (ref. 2)	Collect surface water samples	
AEHA = U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency.BRA = Baseline risk assessment.OU-3 = Operable Unit 3.RI = Remedial investigation.			

. .
125 36

TAB

Constant of

N2.11

•

-

1......

Ľ

.

۲ .

<u>Section 3-Sampling Strategy</u> for Operable Unit 3 Remedial Investigations

3.0 Sampling Strategy for Operable Unit 3 Remedial Investigation

This section describes the sampling strategy for OU-3 RI sites. The following information is provided:

- Structure of the investigation
- Data quality objectives (DQOs)
- Data comparisons
- Background data
- Preliminary applicable or relevant and appropriate requirements (ARARs) and preliminary remediation goals (PRGs) development
- Risk-based PRGs
- Statistical data comparison

3.1 Structure of Operable Unit 3 Investigation

This section is intended to give a detailed description of the overall strategy for the investigation of each RI site in OU-3. The approach presented is intended to support a decision to recommend one of the following options:

- Site upgrade (FS, Remedial Design, and RA)
- Site downgrade (support NFA)
- Interim Remedial Action (IRA) or Early Removal

The structure of the investigation was designed using the observational approach. This work plan is intended to implement RI/FS activities on a cost- and time-effective basis. Field screening procedures and statistical evaluations will be used to facilitate decision making, as defined by Figure 3-1.

3.1.1 Scope

The scope of the field investigation for OU-3 includes soil (surface and subsurface), groundwater (Fluvial Aquifer), and surface water sampling. Surface soils and sediments will be sampled to assess the nature and the horizontal extent of contamination and to



Collect Optional Samples to Further Evaluate Horizontal and Vertical Extent of Contamination **(**

ŝ

Θ

Callect Primary Field Samples from Soll, Sodiment, Surface Water and Groundwater

Implement OU-3 FSP

Data Indicate that Contomination 19 Bound Vertically and Horizontally?



Background data set will be established by using criteria identified in the Generic RI/FS WP. Comparison criteria are developed using TSCL, RHBC, and GWPC, as well as other applicable regulatory criteria. These criteria are used as PRGs based on a conservative approach from the standpoint of risk (exposure and assessment criteria). Section 3 of this FSP discusses the comparison criteria.

The bounds of contamination refer to the extent of contamination equal to or less than background and/or PRGs. Θ

NOTES:

- 0

provide data for statistical comparison to background concentrations and PRGs. Subsurface soil samples will be collected to further assess the nature of contamination and the vertical extent of contamination. Surface water samples will help to assess the source of contaminants in the lake sediments and determine if the contaminants are being transported offsite by surface water. The existing monitoring wells will be sampled during the field investigation. Additional monitoring wells may be installed (future) if existing data or data collected during the field investigation of the RI sites indicate the need for further groundwater monitoring.

3.1.2 Approach

A phased approach is being used to implement the observational approach to the investigation of the RI sites. The RI sites to be investigated as part of this work plan are located in OU-3 in the southeastern quadrant of the Main Installation.

The focus of the approach to the RI site investigations at Site 48 (former PCB transformer storage area), Site 58 (Pad 267), and Site 59 (Building 273) is to assess the nature and the extent of potential soil contamination and to investigate whether there may have been releases that have adversely affected the quality of groundwater. The approach to the sampling at Site 25 (Golf Course Pond) and Site 26 (Lake Danielson) addresses the identification of potential contaminant sources only.

Primary samples, those that are planned with respect to location and depth, will be collected at each of the sites. If these samples indicate that the extent of contamination has been found, no further sampling will be performed. However, additional "optional" samples may be needed to more fully assess the extent of contamination. The extent of contamination will be evaluated based on comparison to background or PRG concentrations of the parameters detected, whichever is higher. Background concentrations will be developed as described in the Section 5.3.2 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3). The analytical results of the primary samples will be reviewed in the field to evaluate if any optional samples are needed. Use of Level 2 (7- to 10-day turnaround) analyses will expedite this process. Additional samples may be needed if field personnel find visual evidence of contamination in areas that are not planned for sampling.

In OU-3, groundwater will be investigated through sampling of the existing wells. Upgradient wells will also be installed (as part of the OU-4 FSP) near the facility boundary to investigate sources of offsite contamination. The locations of the facility boundary wells and the suspected groundwater flow direction at DDMT are shown in Figure 4-4 of the OU-4 FSP. The facilitywide groundwater strategy is presented in the OU-4 FSP to achieve a concise presentation of strategy and to prevent redundancy.

Sample analysis activities include screening methods using 7- to 10-day turnaround analyses from a fixed-base laboratory (FBL) (Level 2 data quality). Level 3 quality sample analyses will be used to confirm the results of the Level 2 analyses. Three sites have been identified for RI in OU-3 and arc included in this work plan. Each site is

evaluated to identify the quantity and quality of data needed to achieve the objectives of the RI activities. The site-specific sampling activities are included in Section 4 of this report. Figure 3-1 provides a proposed decision logic diagram for OU-3.

3.1.3 Field Screening

Field screening will provide soil and groundwater data that can be used to effectively investigate the site. The Level 2 data will be coupled with Level 3 analysis. The Level 3 analyses will provide a qualitative evaluation of the Level 2 data and can be used to the degree to which Level 2 data are comparable to Level 3, to show that Level 2 data can be used for risk assessment. The advantages of this type of assessment, as compared to using only Level 3, include quicker laboratory turnaround time for Level 2 results, ability to change based on site conditions, timely contaminant delineation, and reduced cost.

The QAPP (ref. 15) (Section 3) addresses quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) of the sample activities and will specifically describe the differences between Level 2 and Level 3 data. The primary differences that will be addressed include turnaround time, validation process, laboratory QC requirements, and cost.

Three levels of data quality will be used during the RI activities:

- Level 1 analyses may include measurements such as field pH, immunoassay kits, and soil vapor analysis using an organic vapor analyzer (OVA).
- Level 2 analyses may include any parameter of concern that is conducted on a 7- to 10-day turnaround time basis in the fixed laboratory using the project-specific Level 2 methodology.
- Level 3 analyses may include FBL analysis by standard approved methods for volatile organic compounds (VOCs), polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), metals, pesticides, herbicides, and PCBs.

The same analytical methods will be used for the Level 2 7- to 10-day turnaround FBL analyses as for the Level 3 FBL analyses. The primary difference will be the data package deliverable.

There is the potential for Level 4 data to be required in the future at this facility. Samples analyzed using Level 4 QC are analyzed using the same analytical methods as Level 3 samples, but different data package deliverables are provided, as described in Section 3.2.2.4 of the *QAPP*. Confirmational samples will be analyzed using Level 3 QC, and no Level 4 QC is proposed at this time. However, if in the future Level 4 information becomes necessary, this information will be requested from the analytical laboratory.

3.1.4 Fixed-base Laboratory Procedures

Because of the wide variety of sites to be investigated, a complex array of analyses will be conducted for FBL analyses. On the basis of known contaminants at each site, existing data, and level of uncertainty, each field sample will be screened by using Level 2 analyses. Approximately, but no less than, 10 percent of the field samples will be sent to an offsite laboratory for confirmational analyses. Approximately, but no less than, 20 percent of the Level 3 data will be submitted for target compound list/target analyte list (TCL/TAL) analyses, and at a minimum, one sample from each site will be analyzed for the TCL/TAL parameters. Efforts will be made to run TCL/TAL on samples from the area of highest contamination. This will allow the greatest likelihood of detecting any additional types of contamination not previously found. The list of analytical methods that will be used for offsite analysis is presented in Section 4 of the QAPP (ref. 1). The field team leader or site hydrogeologist will select the location of confirmational samples (Level 3), based on the results of the Level 2 data, according to the criteria defined in Sections 3.2 and 3.3 in this document.

3.1.5 Remedial Actions

Field data can be used to support IRAs, RAs, and Early Removal evaluations. A site may be selected for RA, IRA, or Early Removal and confirmational sampling rather than for FS if contamination levels are found to be above removal action levels (RALs) and if the applicable criteria are met. Conducting RAs on a site with contamination covering a limited area may reduce costs because the investigation costs of performing a traditional FS will be eliminated. The RA evaluation will be conducted as a parallel effort to the initial field investigations at DDMT.

3.1.6 Primary and Optional Activities

Primary field activities include field sampling for surface and subsurface soil, pond sediments, surface water, and initial groundwater samples. These activities are planned with respect to location, depth, and parameters to be analyzed. The analytical results from soils and sediments, compared to background concentrations and PRGS, will be used to evaluate the need for additional field sampling. Collection of the background data set is described in Section 5.3.2 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3). Additional investigation (optional samples) may be necessary when data are not bound horizontally or vertically. Optional field work could include additional surface soil, subsurface soil, or sediment sampling, and installation and sampling of new monitoring wells.

By using the screening analytical data, DDMT can implement optional activities to achieve the objectives of the field investigation. By using the optional activities in this manner, work can be conducted during a single field event to prevent remobilization. A field change request form will be instituted to document the description of optional activities, the reasons for implementing the change, and authorization to proceed with optional activities.

3.2 Data Quality Objectives 125 42

DQOs are qualitative and quantitative statements that specify the quality of the data required to support the decision-making process during the sampling activities. DQOs are developed according to the intended final use of the data. Specific objectives of the RI field sampling effort are divided into the following two parts: general field work DQOs and site-specific DQOs. Site-specific DQOs are presented in Section 4. The general DQOs guiding the field investigation process are the following:

- Collect soil samples (surface and subsurface) that are representative of actual site conditions.
- Provide reliable data results supported by quality control (QC) measures implemented during sampling and analysis.
- Use Level 1 screening methods to aid in sample selection.
- Use Level 2 FBL analytical methods to expedite the decision-making process and to collect data quickly and economically. Use analytical techniques for Level 2 data that provide data for use in the risk assessment.
- Conduct sufficient Level 3 FBL analyses to support confirmation of Level 2 data and to support risk-based decisions for the NFA alternative.
- Compare the levels of contamination at sites to background concentrations, applicable regulatory levels, and calculated risk-based levels so that the appropriate recommendations can be developed.
- Provide laboratory support to produce Level 4 data to provide legally supportable documentation for decisions, if needed.

3.3 Data Comparisons

Surface soil, subsurface soil, sediment, and groundwater data will be collected during the primary field work investigation. The data will be collected at locations identified in Section 4 of this report. Locations have been selected by reviewing site history to determine where site activities were reported to have occurred and by reviewing existing environmental data. Once the RI field investigation is underway, data will be collected through the use of the Level 2 data quality, thus expediting the turnaround time. Four data comparisons will be conducted during the RI activities as part of the ongoing investigation. The comparisons are as follows:

 Individual data points for Level 2 data will be compared to the PRGs (Sections 3.5 and 3.6) for organic constituents. Contaminants that exceed the PRGs are considered to be representative of contaminated areas at a site. For inorganic constituents, Level 2 data will be compared to the background data for each data point first, then to PRGs. (Background data are discussed in Section 3.4 of this document.) When attempting to estimate the vertical and horizontal extent of contamination, additional soil or sediment samples may be necessary when organic constituents exceed PRGs or when inorganic constituents exceed background and PRGs.

- Level 2 data will be compared to Level 3 data to assess the data usability. This comparison will be conducted after the Level 3 data have been analyzed by the laboratory and validated. The *QAPP* (ref. 15), Section 3.2.2.2, discusses the approach to assessing Level 2 data quality and usability. The goal is to collect Level 2 data of sufficient quality to be used for statistics and for baseline risk assessment (BRA).
- Level 2 data will be compared to RALs for each data point. The RALs are discussed briefly in Section 3.5.
- The final data comparison will be conducted after the field investigation is complete. This data comparison will use a statistical approach to compare the data for a site to background concentrations, PRGs, and RALs. Information on the statistical approach is presented in Section 3.7.

3.4 Background Data

Background data for soil (surface and subsurface), groundwater, sediment, and surface water will be collected during the initial field work activities. The approach to collecting this data is presented in Section 5.3.2 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3). The data set will be used to establish background numerical criteria for each constituent of concern. The method for establishing this background numerical criteria is presented in Section 5.3.2 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3). The data set set of the *Generic RI/FS WP*. Individual parameters detected at each location sampled as part of the RI activities will be compared to the background data set to assess whether contaminant concentrations indicate a release to the environment. If the analytical data from the RI site sample locations do not exceed the background data, the site will be recommended for NFA. If parameters detected at a site exceed background concentrations, the site will be considered for further investigation by optional field activities (additional surface soil samples, borings, wells, and Early Removals). The optional activities are described in Section 4.

125 44

3.5 Preliminary Identification of ARARs and Screening PRGs

3.5.1 Introduction

The purpose of this section is to summarize information used in the scoping phase of DDMT projects on issues relating to compliance with ARARs, including identification of PRGs. This information guides the development of appropriate sampling and analysis plans and removal actions or facilitates the development of a range of appropriate remedial alternatives and can focus selection on the most effective remedy. Terms used in this section are defined in Table 3-1.

The procedures for identification and evaluation of ARARs and PRGs are presented in several important sources, particularly the following:

- The NCP, specifically 55 FR 8741-8766 for a description of ARARs, and 55 FR 8712-8715 for using ARARs as PRGs; also 53 FR 51394
- CERCLA Compliance Manuals (EPA, 1988 and 1989)
- Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund: Volume 1-Human Health Evaluation Manual (Part B, Development of Risk-based Preliminary Remediation Goals) (RAGS Part B; EPA 1991; ref. 12)

Three types of federal and state ARARs have been identified as described below:

- Chemical-specific. Health or risk management-based numbers or methodologies that result in the establishment of numerical values for a given media that would meet the NCP "threshold criteria" of overall protection of human health and the environment and compliance with ARARs. The development and presentation of these threshold criteria are a major focus during this initial phase because of their role in the development of the specific sampling plans and their use in initial data interpretation.
- Location-specific. Restrictions placed on the concentrations of hazardous substances or the conduct of activities solely because they are in special locations (such as wetlands).
- Action-specific. Usually technology- or activity-based requirements or limitations on actions taken with respect to hazardous waste.

The detailed ARAR and PRG information is provided in Section 3.5 of the *Generic RI/FS* WP and presents initial guidelines. This information does not establish that cleanup to meet these goals is warranted. As more information is obtained about all four OUs and

- -

Table 3-1
ARARs and PRGs Definitions
Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

Term	Definition
Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements (ARARs)	Applicable requirements are those clean-up standards, standards of control, and other substantive environmental protection requirements, criteria, or limitations promulgated under federal, state, or local law that specifically address a hazardous substance, pollutant, contaminant, remedial action, location, or other circumstance at a Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) site. <i>Relevant and appropriate</i> requirements are clean-up standards which, while not "applicable," address problems or situations sufficiently similar to those encountered at a CERCLA site that their use is well suited to the particular site. ARARs can be action-specific, location-specific, or chemical-specific.
Final Remediation Levels (FRLs)	Chemical-specific clean-up levels are documented in the Record of Decision (ROD). They may differ from PRGs because of modifications resulting from consideration of various uncertainties, technical and exposure factors, as well as all nine selection-of-remedy criteria outlined in the National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP).
Preliminary Remediation Goals (PRGs)	These are initial clean-up goals that (1) are protective of human health and the environment and (2) comply with ARARs. They are developed early in the process by using readily available information and are modified to reflect results of the baseline risk assessment. They also are used during analysis of remedial alternatives in the RI/FS.
Risk-based PRGs	These are concentration levels set at scoping for individual chemicals that correspond to a specific cancer risk level of 10^{-6} or a hazard quotient/hazard index (HQ/HI) of 1. They are generally selected when ARARs are not available.
Screening Risk-based PRGs	These are conservative risk-based estimates and guidance concentrations to be used for site and pathway screening. Lower values than typically estimated after a baseline risk assessment are presented. Values correspond to an HQ/HI of 0.1.
Remedial Goal Options (RGOs)	Remedial goal options are typically developed during the baseline risk assessment to present risk managers with a range of possible target FRLs.
Removal Action Levels (RALs)	These are concentrations that trigger consideration of removal actions based on the potential for acute or long-term chronic effects.

as remedial alternatives are considered, federal and state requirements will be narrowed to those that are potential ARARs for each alternative.

3.5.2 Chemical-specific Threshold Concentrations

Threshold criteria were developed for each media of potential concern, specifically groundwater, surface water, soil, and sediment, and include ARAR-based PRGs, guidance values that are "to be considered," and screening risk-based PRGs.

The screening PRGs developed represent the most conservative approach to interpreting the site data. These data are intended for use in screening the sites to evaluate the appropriate disposition of the site.

The screening PRGs were developed from information provided in *RAGS Part B* (ref. 12) and guidance from EPA Region IV. Region III publishes screening PRGs, and the table is updated semiannually. Region III PRGs were used for guidance in developing the PRGs. However, the screening values for DDMT are more conservative than the Region III values. The following factors were considered and led to the development of these screening PRGs for DDMT:

- Presence of multiple contaminants
- Pathways not considered in the published values (soil-to-groundwater pathways)
- Potential ecological effects
- Appropriate land-use assumptions

Remedial goal options (RGOs), consistent with EPA Region IV guidance, will be developed during the RI process and will provide a more realistic basis for the development of final remediation levels (FRLs). Also, a more detailed discussion of media-specific PRGs and the PRG tables are presented in Section 3.6 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3).

3.5.3 Action-specific ARARs

Action-specific ARARs usually are technology- or activity-based requirements or limitations on actions taken with respect to hazardous wastes, or requirements to conduct certain actions to address particular circumstances at a site. Remedial alternatives that involve, for example, closure or discharge of dredged or fill material may be subject to ARARs under RCRA and the Clean Water Act, respectively. A detailed media-specific explanation of action-specific ARARs is presented in Section 3.5.3 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3).

3.5.4 Location-specific ARARs

Location-specific ARARs generally are restrictions placed on the concentration of hazardous substances or the conduct of activities solely because they are in special locations. Some examples of special locations include floodplains, wetlands, historic places, and sensitive ecosystems or habitats. Discussions with TDEC, Division of Solid Waste Management, have indicated that the state is not aware of any natural resources for which it acts as a trustee that are potentially threatened or damaged as a result of past or current waste disposal practices conducted at DDMT. Furthermore, a search for possible location-specific ARARs was conducted during the 1990 RI activities (ref. 10), and no federal, state, or local natural resources were found to be near the site. Before the completion of the final RI/FS report(s), a CERCLA 104B.2 Notification Form will be submitted to the Department of Interior (DOI) by DDMT to evaluate whether the DOI is a trustee of any natural resources that may be threatened by a release of hazardous substances from the site.

3.6 Risk-based Preliminary Remediation Goals

The PRGs developed for use in DDMT work plans are designed to be protective using conservative assumptions. In this way, they may be used for screening sites where a focused investigation is conducted to select locations that represent "worst-case conditions," and decisionmakers can be confident that chemicals reported below these concentrations would result in acceptable risks at the site after a BRA. For risk-based PRGs, the following general assumptions are used:

- Residential land use
- Target risk level (TRL) of 10⁻⁶; target hazard index (THI) of 0.1

The current land use is industrial, and many areas of the facility are located where worker exposures would be relatively infrequent. Risk estimates based on the TRL of 10^{-6} or THI of 0.1 would be protective if several chemicals were present below the specified concentrations. However, under conditions where 10 or more chemicals were reported, additional review would be required. More detailed information regarding PRG development and calculations can be found in Section 3.6 of the *Generic RI/FS WP* (ref. 3).

3.7 Statistical Data Comparison

If a biased sample (assumed to represent potential "hot spot" or high-concentration locations) shows concentrations exceeding the conservative screening PRGs (but below the RAL), it is possible that the average concentration over the designated exposure area would not represent a potential for adverse effects. Statistical sampling and comparison

125 48

of estimates of the average concentration would meet requirements to demonstrate acceptable risk-based levels.

The exposure concentrations used in risk assessments reflect the arithmetic average of the concentration that would be contacted over the exposure period. Although this concentration may not reflect the maximum concentration that could be contacted at any one time, it is regarded as a reasonable estimate of the concentration likely to be contacted over time because it is not reasonable to assume long-term contact with the maximum concentration. Provided that no hot spots (areas of high concentration relative to other areas of the site or elevated above a RAL) are identified, risk estimates are based on the average concentration (ref. 13). However, because of the uncertainty associated with any estimate of soil concentration, the 95 percent upper confidence limit (UCL95) of the arithmetic average is used for this estimate. The PRGs are based on the average exposure below the estimated concentration; therefore, these would also be compared with a statistical estimate of the average.

This method is also documented in EPA guidance for statistical comparisons. For example, methods for testing whether soil chemical concentrations at a site are statistically below a cleanup standard or ARAR are presented in *Methods for Evaluating the Attainment of Cleanup Standards, Volume 1: Soils and Solid Media* (ref. 14). Several approaches are identified, including comparison of a calculated upper confidence limit (UCL95) of the mean with the target concentrations.

3.7.1 Statistically Based Samples

Samples for each exposure medium (surface soil and sediment) will be collected at each site. A minimum number of samples is required to estimate a statistical mean for a data set. A total of nine is the recommended minimum because it is the smallest number of samples that can be used in an estimate of a statistical mean to be used in a UCL95 calculation without defaulting to the maximum detected concentration. Nine samples provide information on the chemical distribution of the contamination. The mean is used to calculate a UCL95, which gives the upper confidence limit of a data set at a 95 percent confidence.

The objective of the sampling program is to allow a set of samples collected from a site to be generalized to the entire site. This form of systematic (probabilistic) sampling is proposed to assist in reaching conclusions regarding a site as efficiently as possible, while maintaining a degree of confidence that the site has been effectively sampled.

125 49

TAB

Î

and and

.....

t é

•

1

ļ

Section 4 - Sampling Plan

4.0 Sampling Plan

125 50

4.1 Sampling Summary

Section 4 describes the activities that will be conducted during the field investigation at OU-3. The activities support the investigative strategy described in Section 3 of this report. The proposed sampling plans for OU-3 include surface soil samples, subsurface soil samples, sediment samples, surface water samples, and groundwater samples from the Fluvial Aquifer. The primary Level 2 and 3 samples that will be collected at Sites 25, 26, 48, 58, and 59 are summarized in Table 4-1. The relationship between primary and optional samples is described in Section 3.1. Further information on the samples that will be collected, including QC samples and analytical methods, is described in the following sections. A brief discussion of the types of QC samples that will be collected on the basis of location and sample matrix. Only the primary analytical samples are shown in the tables. Sampling at each site is specified in terms of a defined primary sampling effort, followed by an optional sampling effort, which will depend upon the results of the primary sampling. Since the optional sampling is undefined, these samples are not shown in the tables.

4.2 Site 25: Golf Course Pond

4.2.1 Site Description

The Golf Course Pond is an unlined, manmade pond approximately 75 ft wide and 125 ft long with an earthen dam. This site is located in the northeast corner of the DDMT Golf Course, just south of Building 270 (Figure 4-1). The site is currently listed as an FS site; however, sampling will occur as part of the RI effort to identify source areas of contamination.

4.2.2 Site History

The Golf Course Pond has been in existence since the 1940s. The pond receives surface water runoff from the golf course and the southeast portion of the installation. Storm water enters the pond in one of two ways: through overland flow from the surrounding land area and through 8-inch-diameter and 36-inch-diameter storm water drainage pipes. Overflow from this impoundment flows to an open, concrete-lined storm drain that eventually drains into Nonconnah Creek, a tributary of the Mississippi River.

4.2.3 Existing Data

In 1986, the U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency (USAEHA) conducted a water quality biological survey on both Lake Danielson and the Golf Course Pond. The results

1	2	5	5	1
---	---	---	---	---

. -

.....

	Samples to Defense	Table 4-1 Be Collected Depot Memp	by Site in OI his, Tennesce	J- 3	
			Site Number	<u> </u>	<u> </u>
	25*	26"	48	58	59
Surface Soil					
VOC		-	5		
РАН					9
Pest./PCB			5	9	9
Herbicides				9	9
TCL/TAL			1	1	1
Subsurface Soil					
VOC			-		
PAH					5
Pest/PCB				· · · · ·	5
Herbicides					5
Metals					
TCL/TAL			[-
Groundwater					
TCL/TAL			1		
Surface Water					
Pest./PCB	14	14		1	-
Metals	14	14			
TSS/TOC	8	8		1	
TCL/TAL	2	2			
Sediment					
PesL/PCB					
Metals					
Misc,					
TCL/TAL					
Listed as a Feasibility : Herbicides = Analysis t Metals = Priority pollut	Study site. Samp by SW 846 Metho tant metals (Sb, A	ling for source od 8150. as, Bc, Cd, Cr,	Cu, Pb, Hg, N	i only. Vi. Se. Ag. Tl. Z	n).
Analysis by S samples will I samples will I PAH = Polynyclear am	W 846 Method 6 be analyzed for to be analyzed for to matic hydrogethe	010/7000 serie Mai and disolve Mai metals only	ed metals. Gri 9.	ter oundwater	
Pest./PCB = Pesticide/p SW 846 N	matte hydrocarbo olychlorinated bi Method 8080,	phenyl. Analysis b	y Sw 846 Mei ysis by a modi:	fied	
QC = Quality control. TCL/TAL = Target con TOC = Total organic ca TSS = Total suspended VOC = Volatile organic	npound list/targe arbon, Analysis l solids, Analysis c compound, An	t analyte list, by EPA Metho by EPA Meth alysis by SW 8	d 415.1. od 160.2. 46 Method 82	:40.	
Note: Summary does n activity tables for each :	ot include QC sa site (Tables 4-2 t)	mples. These hrough 4-6).	are given in th	ic field sampling	3



of the water analysis from this study indicated that the pond water was generally free of the tested analytes (metals, semivolatiles, and pesticides) (Appendix B, ref. 2). Sediment analysis from the pond detected several metals and pesticides. However, since both the metals and pesticides were not detected in the accompanying surface water samples, this study concluded that the contaminants appeared to be accumulating in the sediments without being a water quality problem (ref. 2). Fish tissue samples from goldfish in the Golf Course Pond exhibited pesticide (dichlorodiphenyltrichloroethane [DDT] and its breakdown products) and PCB residues. Because of the levels of pesticides observed in the fish tissue analysis, the USAEHA study recommended that fish from the Golf Course Pond not be consumed (ref. 2). In addition, surface water, sediment, and surface soil samples were also collected during the 1990 RI activities (ref. 10). The results of this study were in agreement with the USAEHA study and the analytical results are provided in Appendix B. Figure 4-1 shows the previous sampling locations at the Golf Course Pond and in OU-3.

4.2.4 Potential Contaminants of Concern

Review of the site history and the previous sampling analytical results indicates that the potential contaminants of concern (COCs) are metals, pesticides, and PCBs.

D: Defense l	Site 25 ata Gaps and DQOs Depot Memphis, Tennessee
Data Gaps	DQOs
Source of sediment contamination	Evaluate whether contamination is from the storm water collection system or area runoff by sampling surface water during rainfall events
	Collect at least one TCL/TAL sample to access whether other unknown contamination is present in storm water runoff

4.2.5 Data Gaps and Site-specific Data Quality Objectives

4.2.6 Soils Sampling and Analysis

Site 25 is proposed for FS as a result of known contamination. No soil sampling and analyses are currently proposed for this site.

4.2.7 Groundwater Sampling and Analysis

Groundwater contamination as a result of leaching from the sediment in the Golf Course Pond is not suspected. The COCs are pesticides, PCBs, and metals, which have low mobility in soils. If contamination has leached form the sediments, it would likely be bound in the soils beneath the pond. Furthermore, the bottom of the pond may be sealed, so no aqueous phase contaminants could be transported vertically to the groundwater. Therefore, sampling of monitoring wells is not proposed for this site.

4.2.8 Surface Water Sampling and Analysis

Surface water samples will be collected from the two storm water inlets and two other runoff sources to the Golf Course Pond to help assess if sediment contamination may have resulted from transport of contaminants through the storm water collection system.

Storm water samples will be collected at the closest manhole to where the storm water inlets discharge to the Golf Course Pond (2 inlets) during two separate storm events with more than 0.2 inches of rainfall. A total of eight grab samples will be collected (2 events x 4 locations). Both filtered (0.45-micrometer [μ m] glass fiber filter) and unfiltered samples will be analyzed for Level 3 pesticides/PCBs and metals. This approach will allow an evaluation of whether detected contaminants are associated with the suspended particles or are in a dissolved phase. Each sample will be collected to coincide with the first flush of storm water from the collection system. This will provide the greatest likelihood of detecting the highest levels of contamination that may be transported to the pond by the collection system. Specific analyses are listed in Table 4-2.

Contaminants that have been found in Golf Course Pond sediments and fish tissue may have been the result of spillage from DDMT industrial areas that was then transported into the storm water sewer system (and eventually into the pond) by precipitation. Taking surface water samples after a rainfall event at the pond will help assess if there is still an active source for the contaminants of interest (pesticides, PCBs, metals) in the industrial areas. Presence of an active source will be indicated if surface water samples have concentrations above background concentrations and PRGs. If it is suspected that an active source may still be present, a more extensive monitoring plan will need to be initiated for the DDMT storm sewer system to evaluate the source(s) of contamination. This will be performed during a later phase of field investigation at DDMT.

4.2.9 Sediment Sampling and Analysis

No sediment sampling and analysis are proposed for Site 25. Site 25 may require FS sampling as part of a future effort.

4.3 Site 26: Lake Danielson

4.3.1 Site Description

Lake Danielson consists of an unlined, manmade pond approximately 4 acres in surface area and approximately 15 ft deep at the deepest point. The lake is located at the

- -	Collection at Def	Table 4-2 nd Analysis of Site 2. Golf Course Pe ease Depot Memphi	5 Samples (by M ond s, Tennessee	ledia)	
			Level 3	ļ	
Media	Description	Pest./PCB*	Metals ^b	Misc."	TCL/TAL ⁴
Surface Soil	None				
QC					
Surface Water*	4 locations x 2 sampling events; (fi)tered/unfiltered)	14	14	8	2
QC	FB, FD	EB, MS/MSD	FB, FD, EB, MS/MSD	EB,FB,M\$/M\$D	
Sediment	None				
QC					
EB = Equipmen	t blank (I per day per t	ype of equipment use	d for sampling).		

FB = Field blank (1 per week per source of decontamination water).

FD = Field duplicate (10% of Level 3).

MS/MSD = Matrix spike/matrix spike duplicate (5% per matrix).

PAH = Polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbon.

Pest./PCB = Pesticide/polychlorinated biphenyl.

QC = Quality control.

TB = Trip blank (1 per day per cooler containing VOCs.

TCL/TAL = Target compound list/target analyte list.

TOC = Total organic carbon.

TSS = Total suspended solids.

VOC = Volatile organic compound.

Notes:

*Pesticides/PCBs will be analyzed by a modified SW 846 Method 8080.

^b Metals analysis will include the priority pollutant metals analyzed by SW 846 Method 6010/7000,

series. (Sb, As, Be, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pb, Hg, Ni, Se, Ag, Tl, Zn). Groundwater samples will be

analyzed for total metals only. Dissolved metal samples will not be collected.

⁶ TSS will be analyzed by EPA Method 160.2. TOC will be analyzed by Method 415.1.

^d TCL/TAL analysis will include the CLP methods for VOCs, SVOCs, pesticides/PCBs, and metals.

Both filtered and unfiltered analyses are required for Pest/PCB and Metals.

northwest corner of the golf course, just east of Buildings 470 and 489 (Figure 4-1). The site is currently listed as an FS site; however, sampling will occur as part of the RI effort to identify source areas of contamination.

4.3.2 Site History

Lake Danielson receives storm water runoff from the central area (approximately 65 acres) of DDMT. Major facilities within this area include the majority of the 20 typical warehouse areas, Building 359 and 360, and part of Building 559. The ground cover in the catchment area is mostly impervious (i.e., paved or built up). Storm water from the catchment area enters Lake Danielson via a 48-inch-diameter pipe in the northwest corner of the lake. A smaller amount of storm water is contributed via overland flow from the area immediately surrounding Lake Danielson (ref. 5). Previous uses of Lake Danielson date back to the 1940s when the lake was used for fire tank truck testing and recreational purposes. Fire tank truck testing consisted of fire trucks withdrawing water from the reservoir, testing various equipment (pumps, hoses, instruments), and discharging the water back into Lake Danielson. Recreational use of Lake Danielson (fishing) was discontinued after the results of the 1986 USAEHA study were published (ref. 2). Overflow from this impoundment flows to an open, concrete-lined storm drain that eventually drains into Nonconnah Creek, a tributary of the Mississippi River.

4.3.3 Existing Data

Existing data from Lake Danielson consist primarily of surface water, sediment, and fish tissue (catfish) samples taken during the USAEHA study (ref. 2) and surface water and sediment samples (Figure 4-2) taken during the 1990 RI activities (ref. 10). The only parameter detected in the surface water during the USAEHA study was the pesticide DDT at USAEHA Sample Site 1 (located at the storm water influent to the lake). This sample was taken after a rainfall event. SW-13 was taken at the same location during RI activities and did not detect DDT (ref. 10). The sediment data from both studies indicated the presence of pesticides (DDT, chlordane) and metals. However, comparison of the contaminant data (metals and pesticide concentrations) in the surface water and sediments indicates that the metals and pesticides appear to be effectively bound up in the sediments and do not pose a water quality problem. Analytical results from previous sampling activities around Site 26 are provided in Appendix B. The water quality during rainstorms is largely unknown because influent flows may cause turbidity in lake sediments. Fish tissue (catfish) samples taken from Lake Danielson during the USAEHA study indicated the presence of pesticides (DDT and its breakdown products, chlordane, chlorpyrifos, and dieldrin) and PCBs, resulting in a recommendation to prohibit fish consumption (and fishing) from Lake Danielson.

Monitoring well MW-25 was installed near Lake Danielson during the RI activities to assess whether contaminants from the lake have affected groundwater. Analytical results of previous sampling indicate elevated levels of tetrachloroethene. After review of the



November 1993 water table surface map (Figure 2-9), MW-25 was found to be crossgradient of Lake Danielson. The VOC contamination may be from offsite sources.

4.3.4 Potential Contaminants of Concern

Review of the site history and previous sampling analytical results indicates that the potential COCs are metals, pesticides, and PCBs. VOCs were not included as a COC because the parameters detected in soil were methylene chloride and acetone, and detections were near or below quantitation limits. The compounds are common laboratory contaminants, and their detection was not likely representative of field conditions.

VOCs were detected in MW-25; an offsite source of VOCs is suspected. This will be investigated by installing Fluvial Aquifer monitoring wells (one upgradient of MW-25 and one upgradient of MW-26) along the DDMT facility boundary. The installation of these wells and the sampling that will be performed is addressed in the OU-4 FSP (ref. 15).

4.3.5 Data Gaps and Site-specific Data Quality Objectives

Data Defense De	Site 26 a Gaps and DQOs pot Memphis, Tennessee
Data Gaps	DQQs
Source of sediment contamination	Evaluate whether contamination is from the storm water collection system or area runoff by sampling surface water during rainfall events
Offsite, upgradient groundwater quality	Collect groundwater data at DDMT facility boundary upgradient of the site $(OU-4 FSP)$
	Collect at least one TCL/TAL sample to assess whether other unknown contamination is present in storm water runoff

4.3.6 Soils Sampling and Analysis

Site 25 is proposed for FS as a result of known contamination. No soil sampling is currently proposed for this site.

4.3.7 Groundwater Sampling and Analysis

Monitoring well MW-25 was installed near Lake Danielson during the RI activities to assess whether contaminants from the lake have affected groundwater. Analytical results of previous sampling indicate elevated levels of tetrachloroethene. After review of the

November 1993 water table surface map (Figure 2-9), MW-25 was found to be crossgradient of Lake Danielson. The VOC contamination may be from offsite sources.

Groundwater contamination as a result of leaching from the sediment in Lake Danielson is not suspected. The COCs are pesticides, PCBs, and metals, which have low mobility in soils. If contamination has leached from the sediments, it would likely be bound in the soils beneath the lake. Furthermore, the bottom of the lake may be sealed, so no aqueous phase contaminants could be transported vertically to the groundwater. Therefore, no groundwater sampling is proposed for the site.

4.3.8 Surface Water Sampling and Analysis

Surface water samples will be collected from the storm water inlet and three other potential source locations to Lake Danielson to evaluate whether contamination found in the sediments may have resulted from transport of contaminants from specific areas in-OU-3.

Storm water samples will be collected at the closest manhole (or discharge point) to where the storm water discharges to Lake Danielson (1 inlet) during two separate storm events with more than 0.2 inches of rainfall. A total of eight grab samples will be collected (2 events x 4 locations). The location of the inlet to Lake Danielson is shown in Figure 4-2. Both filtered (0.45- μ m glass fiber filter) and unfiltered samples will be analyzed for Level 3 pesticides/PCBs and metals. This approach will provide information on whether detected contaminants are associated with the suspended particles or are in a dissolved phase. Each sample will be collected to coincide with the first flush of storm water from the collection system. This will provide the greatest likelihood of detecting the highest levels of contamination that may be transported to the lake by the collection system. Specific analyses are listed in Table 4-3.

Contaminants found in Lake Danielson during previous studies indicate that the source of contaminants in the sediments and the fish tissue may have been the result of spillage from DDMT industrial areas that was then transported into the storm water sewer system (and eventually into the lake) by precipitation.

Taking surface water samples after a rainfall event at the lake inlet will help evaluate whether there is an active source for the contaminants of interest (pesticides, PCBs, metals) in the industrial areas. Presence of an active source will be indicated if surface water samples have concentrations above background concentrations and PRGs. If it is suspected that an active source may still be present, a more extensive monitoring plan will need to be initiated for the DDMT storm sewer system to evaluate the source(s) of contamination. This will be performed during a later phase of field investigation at DDMT.

	Collection	Table 4 and Analysis of Site Lake Dani Defense Depot Mem	-3 = 26 Samples (by M elson phis, Tennessee	Media)	
	_			Level 3	
Media	Description	Pest/PCB*	Metals	Misc,*	TCLTAL
Groundwater	None				
QC					
Surface Soll	None				
QC					
Surface Water"	4 locations x 2 sampling events	14	14	8	2
QC		EB, MS/MSD	EB, MS/MSD	EB, FB, MS/MSD	EB, FB, MS/MSD
Sediment	None				·
QC			· · · · · ·	· · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
EB = Equipment b FB = Field blank (lank (1 per day per type of ea 1 per week per source of dec	puipment used for sar entamination water).	npling).	•	

FD = Field duplicate (10% of Level 3).

MS/MSD = Matrix spike/matrix spike duplicate (5% per matrix).

Pest/PCB = Pesticide/polychlorinated biphenyl.

QC = Quality control.

SS = Split sample.

TB = Trip blank (1 per day per cooler containing VOCs).

TCL/TAL = Target compound list/target analyto list.

TOC = Total organic carbon.

TSS = Total suspended solids.

Notes:

* Pesticides/PCBs will be analyzed by a modified SW 846 Method 8080.

^b Metals analysis will include the priority pollutant metals analyzed by SW 846 Method 6010/7000 series.

(Sb, As, Bc, Cd, Cr, Cu, Pb, Hg, Ni, Sc, Ag, Tl, Zn). Surface water samples will be analyzed for total and dissolved metals.

TSS will be analyzed by EPA Method 160.2; TOC will be analyzed by a modified EPA Method 415.1.

^d TCL/TAL analysis will include the CLP methods for VOCs, SVOCs, pesticides/PCBs, and metals.

Total and dissolved samples will be collected to assess nature of contamination.

4.3.9 Sediment Sampling and Analysis

No sediment sampling and analyses are proposed for Site 26. Sediment sampling may occur as part of future FS activities.

4.4 Site 48: Former PCB Transformer Storage Area

4.4.1 Site Description

This site is a former storage location of electrical transformers containing PCBs. The site is located west of Building T-272 (Figure 4-1). Building 274 is located on this site and was constructed after the transformer storage had ceased. The location of the site in OU-3 is shown in Figure 4-1.

4.4.2 Site History

This site has been reported as the former storage location of at least two electrical transformers. Testing of the fluid in the transformers indicated a concentration of less than 50 parts per million (ppm) of PCBs (refs. 16 and 17). These transformers were discovered during the Installation Assessment conducted in March 1981 (ref. 17). The site's date of initial operation is unknown but assumed to be 1981. Activities ceased in the mid-1980s because the new DDMT cafeteria was constructed at this site.

4.4.3 Existing Data

Two soil samples were taken next to the perimeter during the 1990 RI activities (ref. 10). These samples exhibited PAHs and pesticides (DDT plus breakdown products). All of the PAHs detected were below the reporting limits for the analysis. PCBs were not detected in surface soil samples or in the downgradient groundwater samples collected from MW-26 during the RI (ref. 10) and the November 1993 groundwater monitoring event (ref. 11). However, tetrachloroethane and carbon tetrachloride were detected in MW-26 samples at levels near or slightly above maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) during both the RI (ref. 10) and the November 1993 sampling event (ref. 11).

4.4.4 Potential Contaminants of Concern

Review of previous activities at the site and historical analytical results indicate that the potential COCs at this site are VOCs, pesticides, and PCBs. VOCs are included because elevated levels were detected during previous groundwater sampling in the vicinity of the site, and pesticides are included because elevated levels were previously detected in nearby soil samples. PCBs are included because of the storage of PCB-contaminated transformers. However, no PCBs have been detected during previous sampling.

4.4.5	Data	Gaps	and	Site-specific	Data	Quality	Objectives
-------	------	------	-----	---------------	------	---------	------------

S Data Gaj Defense Depot M	ite 48 ps and DQOs Memphis, Tennessee
Data Gaps	DQOs
Horizontal extent of potential soil contamination	Assess the horizontal extent of potential soil contamination Expedite the field investigation and decision process
	by using Level 2 analyses
• ····································	Confirm results of Level 2 analyses with Level 3 analyses
Data for performing a risk assessment	Collect data that support a statistically based comparison to background concentrations and PRGs
	Collect at least one TCL/TAL sample to assess whether other unknown contamination is present

4.4.6 Soils Sampling and Analysis

Soil samples will be collected to assess the horizontal extent of potential soil contamination from past activities in the area of Site 48 (Building 274). The details of the sampling plan for Site 48 are shown in Table 4-4. Biased surface soil samples will be collected to evaluate contaminants and to make comparisons to background concentrations and PRGs. Field personnel will survey the area around the site for indicators of contamination (i.e., stained soil, distressed vegetation). Where areas of concern are found, a surface soil sample will be collected and analyzed by Level 2 methods for VOCs and pesticides/PCBs. Five surface locations will be sampled at a depth of 0 to 12 inches below land surface (bls). The samples will be collected beneath any gravel or pavement that may be present. Sampling locations are shown in Figure 4-2.

Optional surface soil samples and optional soil borings may be performed, if initial sampling indicates contamination, to further investigate the extent of contamination. These sample locations will be chosen through review of the analytical results obtained from the primary soil sampling locations. The optional borings will include additional samples from depths of 10 and 20 ft bls. The procedure of using an OVA to check for non-methane organic vapors to determine the depth of the final sample from a boring will also be used for the optional borings.

Soil samples obtained from Site 48 will be analyzed for Level 2 VOCs and pesticides/ PCBs. The soil sampling plan for Site 48 is detailed in Table 4-4. Duplicate soil samples will be collected at each sampling point to provide a sample for possible Level 3 (confirmational) analysis. A minimum of 10 percent of the Level 2 samples will have a duplicate sent for Level 3 confirmational analysis. Selection of the samples for Level 3 analysis will be determined by the field team leader or site hydrogeologist. The

릚
E.
M
2
ă
ő.
l
-

	Colle	r ction and Analysis Former PCB Tra Defense Depot	able 4-4 of Site 48 Sampl unsformer Storag Memphis, Tenne	es (by Media) e Arca ance		
-		Levi	el 2		Level 3	
Media	Description	Pest./PCB [*]	vocs	TCL/TAL	Pest/PCB [*]	voci
Groundwater	ł existing well (MW-26)					
8	See Table 4-3			TB, FB, EB, MS/MSD, SS		
Surface Soil	5 locations	Ś	s	1		
ж		EB,FB, MS/MSD	TB,EB,FB, MS/MSD	TB, EB, FB, MS/MSD, SS		
Subsurface Soil	None					
X						
EB = Equipment blank FB = Field blank (1 per FD = MSMSD = Matrix spik PAH = Polynueteur aron Pest./PCB = Pesticide.po	 per day per type of equi- week per source of decont te/matrix spike duplicate (' tatic bydrocurbon.' 	pment used for sam amination water), 5% per matrix).	pling).	QC = Quality cont SS = Split sumple. TB = Trip blank (1 TCL/TAL = Target VOC = Volatile or	ol. per day per pooler eo compound list/targe ganic compound.	ntaining VOCs). :t analyte list.
Notes: [•] Pesticid es /PCBs will b ^b VOCs wilt be analyzed ^e TCL/TAL analysis will for total metals only. I	e analyzed by a modified S by SW 846 Method 8240. include the CLP methods bissolved metals samples v	W 846 Method 808 for VOCs, SVOCs, vill not be collected	0. posticides/PCBs, and analyzed for	and metals. Grours groundwater.	dwater samples will	be analyzed

-

125 63

56/62/6

determination will be based on field screening results. One surface soil location will be analyzed for TCL/TAL parameters to assess the presence of any contamination not previously found. Field screening results will be used to select a biased location so that the TCL/TAL analysis is performed near the area with the highest contaminant concentrations. QC samples will be collected in accordance with the *QAPP* and are indicated in Table 4-4.

4.4.7 Groundwater Sampling and Analysis

Information on whether releases from the site have affected groundwater quality in the vicinity of Site 48 will be obtained by sampling the Fluvial Aquifer. Downgradient groundwater quality will be monitored by sampling MW-26. Analytical testing will include a full scan for TCL/TAL.

Groundwater from MW-26 will be sampled in accordance with standard groundwater sampling practices outlined in Section 5.1 of the *QAPP*. Each groundwater sample will be sent offsite for Level 3 TCL/TAL analysis as shown in Table 4-4.

4.5 Site 58: Pad 267 (Pesticides, Herbicides)

4.5.1 Site Description

Pad 267 refers to a concrete slab area approximately 150 ft by 200 ft that was formerly the site of Building T-267, the Pesticide Shop. The site is located north of Building 274 (Figure 4-1).

4.5.2 Site History

Past uses of Pad 267 include the storage and mixing of pesticides and herbicides that were applied to DDMT grounds by DDMT Entomology Division personnel. Dates of operation for the shop are unknown but are possibly from the 1940s to the mid-1980s. The Installation Assessment (ref. 17) documented that rinse water from pesticide and herbicide spraying operations was dumped on the ground near the facility up until late 1980. The specific location where rinse water was dumped is unknown. After that time, the rinse water was held for the mixing of later batches. Past pesticide and herbicide spray operations at DDMT generally included 2,4-D on grassy areas, Monuron on railroad track areas, pyrethrum in textile warehouses, Hy-Var-X in gravel areas, and phostoxin (aluminum phosphide) for stack and transit fumigation (ref. 17). The USAEHA Environmental Audit of DDMT (ref. 18) conducted in 1985 indicated that all pesticide operations at DDMT were transferred to Building 737 and that Building T-267 (Pesticide Shop) was demolished, thus resulting in Pad 267.

4.5.3 Existing Data

Previous investigations did not characterize potential soil contamination at this site. MW-26 was installed in the Fluvial Aquifer near this site during RI activities (ref. 10). Based on groundwater flow direction as shown on the November 1993 water table surface map (Figure 2-9), MW-26 is likely to be cross-gradient of Site 58. Analyses of groundwater samples from MW-26 detected VOCs and metals. Metals concentrations were close to levels found in other monitoring wells.

4.5.4 Potential Contaminants of Concern

Based on the activities that occurred at the site, the potential COCs are pesticides and herbicides. The history of Site 58 indicates that a variety of specific pesticides and herbicides was used. Other than 2,4-D, each of the listed chemicals either is not persistent in the environment (degrades quickly) or has no approved analytical methods available by which it could be detected. Analysis for pesticides and herbicides will include approved methods that cover chemicals that are persistent in the environment and present an environmental hazard. The analytical methods that will be used for pesticides and herbicides are indicated in Table 4-5.

The metals and VOCs detected in MW-26 are assumed to be from another source. None of the activities at Site 58 would have presented the possibility of release of VOCs or metals. Furthermore, the location of MW-26 is cross-gradient of the site, so contaminant levels in the groundwater at MW-26 would not necessarily represent groundwater quality at Site 58. VOCs detected in MW-26 may be from an offsite source. The quality of groundwater entering DDMT from offsite will be investigated through installation of a Fluvial Aquifer monitoring well upgradient of the RI sites in OU-3 along the DDMT facility boundary (ref. 15). The installation and sampling of this new upgradient well is addressed in the OU-4 FSP.

Site 58 Data Gaps and DQOs Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee				
Data Gaps	DQOs			
Presence of soil contamination	Assess presence of soil contamination			
	Expedite the field investigation and decision process by using Level 2 analyses			
	Confirm results of Level 2 analyses with Level 3 analyses			
	Collect at least one TCL/TAL sample to assess whether other unknown contamination is present			

4.5.5 Data Gaps and Site-specific Data Quality Objectives



	Collection and A Defense	Table 4-5 nalysis of Site 58 Pad 267 : Depot Memphis	Samples (by Med , Tennessee	Ē		
		Lev	el 2	Level		
Media	Description	Pesticides [*]	Herbicides ^b	TCL/TAL	Pesticides ^a	Herbicides ^b
Surface Soil	9 locations	6	6	1		
δc		EB,FB,MS/MSD	EB,FB,MS/MSD	TB, EB, FB, MS/MSD		
Subsurface Soil	None		<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>			
OC						
EB = Equipment blar FB = Field blank (1 p FD = Field duplicate MS/MSD = Matrix sp QC = Quality control. TB = Trip blank (1 pc TCL/TAL = Target co	k (1 per day per type of equipme er week per source of decontami ike/matrix spike duplicate (5% iday per cooler containing VOC mpound list/target analyte list.	art used for sampli ration water). per matrix, if colle 's).	ing). cted within 14 day			
Notes: Pesticides will be analy b Herbicides will be anal c TCL/TAL analysis wil	vzed by a modified SW 846 Met lyzed by SW 846 Method 8150. I include the CLP methods for V	hod 8080. OCs, SVOCs, pes	ticides/PCBs, and	metals.		

56/62/6

4.5.6 Soils Sampling and Analysis

To evaluate whether contamination exists at this site, surface soil samples will be collected. Nine surface soil samples will be collected from the systematic locations identified in Figure 4-2. Because the exact location of releases is not known, samples will be taken across the entire area of potential contamination. A significant amount of this area has been paved, so surface soil samples will be collected from unpaved areas nearest the locations indicated in Figure 4-2. The samples will be from the upper 12 inches of the soil beneath any gravel that may be present. These samples will be analyzed for Level 2 pesticides and herbicides. One duplicate surface soil sample will be analyzed for Level 3 TCL/TAL to assess whether any other contamination is present at the site.

Optional soil samples may be collected if the field screening results indicate that additional samples are required to evaluate the extent of contamination present at the site. Sample locations will be determined by review of the analytical results obtained from the primary sampling locations. Optional soil borings will include additional samples from depths of 10 and 20 ft bls.

Additional samples may also be collected from areas where there is visual evidence of contamination. Field personnel will survey the area for indicators of contamination such as stained soil or distressed vegetation. If an area of possible contamination is found, a surface soil sample will be collected and analyzed by Level 2 methods for pesticides and herbicides. The field team leader will use the results to decide whether additional surface soil samples or soil borings are needed.

The soil sampling plan for Site 58 is detailed in Table 4-5. Duplicate soil samples will be collected at each sampling point to provide a sample for possible Level 3 (confirmational) analysis. A minimum of 10 percent of the Level 2 samples will have a duplicate sent for Level 3 confirmational analysis. Selection of the samples for Level 3 analysis will be determined by the field team leader or site hydrogeologist. The determination will be based on field screening results. One surface soil location will be analyzed for TCL/TAL parameters to assess the presence of any contamination not previously found. Field screening results will be used to select a biased location so that the TCL/TAL analysis is performed near the area with the highest contaminant concentrations. All samples will be collected in accordance with the QAPP. QC samples that will be collected at Site 58 are indicated in Table 4-5.

4.5.7 Groundwater Sampling and Analysis

Groundwater contamination near Site 58 is not suspected because of the low mobility of pesticides and herbicides. Therefore, no monitoring wells or groundwater monitoring are proposed for the site.

4.6 Site 59: Building 273 (Pesticides, Cleaners)

4.6.1 Site Description

This site consists of a mixing area for golf course pesticides and herbicides, approximately 10 ft by 50 ft, located next to the DDMT Golf Course and practice putting green.

4.6.2 Site History

This site had reportedly served as a mixing area for golf course pesticide and herbicide spray operations (ref. 10). Further details concerning this operation are unknown. The dates of operation for the site are unknown but are assumed to be from the 1940s to the mid-1980s.

4.6.3 Existing Data

Two surface soil samples (0 to 12 inches in depth) were collected at this site during the 1990 RI activities (ref. 10) and detected VOCs, PAHs, and pesticides. Results and sampling locations are provided in Appendix B. The levels of VOCs detected were quite low. Most were below method quantitation limits and many of the VOCs were common laboratory or field contaminants that are not believed to be the result of environmental contamination. A number of PAHs were detected at elevated concentrations. The pesticide levels (especially DDT and its breakdown products) detected generally indicate that either minor spillage or disposal of pesticide rinse water may have occurred in this area.

4.6.4 Potential Contaminants of Concern

The history of activities at the site and results of the previous surface soil samples indicate that the potential COCs are PAHs, pesticides, and herbicides. As was discussed for Site 58, the pesticides and herbicides that will be monitored are those that persist in the environment and therefore present a hazard. The specific analytical methods are indicated in Table 4-6.

		PAH ^c		-		E	
Table 4-6 Collection and Analysis of Site 59 Samples (by Media) Building 273 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee	Level 3	erbicides ⁶ 1				₿	s will
		Pesticides H(EB	samples for meta
		TCL/TAL	1	TB, EB, FB, MS/MSD			s. Groundwater
		PAB	6		4	E	114 days). Bs, and metal
	Level 2	Herbicides ^b	6		<u>च</u>	Ð	collected within s, pesticides/PCI
		Pesticides ^a	6			Ð	ment used for sc mination water) 4 per matrix, if DCs). DCs).
		Description	9 locations (2 borings, 7 ss)		2 locations, 2 depths at each		mk (1 per day per type of equip per week per source of decomants spike/matrix spike duplicate (5% urumatic hydrocarbon. er day per cooler containing VC er day per cooler containing VC ompound list/target analyte list. dyzed by a modified SW 846 M ulyzed by a modified SW 846 M alyzed by SW 846 Method 8150 cd by SW 846 Method 8100. ill include the CLP methods for inly. Dissolved-metals sumples
		Media	Surface Soil 5	б	Subsurface Soil 2	б	EB = Equipment blan FB = Field blank (1 FD = Field duplicate MS/MSD = Matrix s PAH = Polynuclear at QC = Quality control. TB = Trip blank (1 pe TCL/TAL = Target co TCL/TAL = Target co Notes: Notes: Pesticides will be ana Pesticides will be analyzed PAHs will be analyzed a TCL/TAL analyzed

.

.

\$6/62/5

4-20

Sit Data Gaps Defense Depot M	e 59 5 and DQOs emphis, Tennessee
Data Gaps	DQOs
Vertical and horizontal extent of soil contamination	Assess the vertical and horizontal extent of soil contamination
	Expedite the field investigation and decision process by using Level 2 analyses
	Confirm results of Level 2 analyses with Level 3 analyses
Data for performing a risk assessment	Collect data that support a statistically based comparison to background concentrations and PRGs
	Collect at least one TCL/TAL sample to assess whether other unknown contamination is present

4.6.5 Data Gaps and Site-specific Data Quality Objectives

4.6.6 Soils Sampling and Analysis

This site is close to the Golf Course Pond and has previously documented levels of PAHs and pesticides in its surface soils. Surface and subsurface soil samples will be collected to assess the vertical and horizontal extent of contamination.

Surface soils will be sampled at nine locations (two borings and seven surface soil locations) around this site (Figure 4-2) and analyzed for Level 2 pesticides, herbicides, and PAHs. One surface soil sample will be analyzed for Level 3 TCL/TAL. All samples for Site 59 will be analyzed as indicated in Table 4-6.

Subsurface soil samples will be collected to assess the vertical extent of contamination. Two 10-ft-deep soil borings will be taken. The borings are located on each side of Building 273 as shown in Figure 4-2, and samples will be collected from the borings at depths of 5 and 10 ft bls. Each sample will be analyzed for Level 2 pesticides, herbicides, and PAHs.

Additional samples may also be collected from areas where there is visual evidence of contamination. Field personnel will survey the area for indicators of contamination such as stained soil or distressed vegetation. If an area of possible contamination is found, a surface soil sample will be collected and analyzed by Level 2 methods for pesticides and herbicides. The field team leader will use the results to decide whether additional surface soil samples or soil borings are needed.

The soil sampling plan for Site 59 is detailed in Table 4-6. Duplicate soil samples will be collected at each sampling point to provide a sample for possible Level 3 (confirmational) analysis. A minimum of 10 percent of the Level 2 samples will have a duplicate sent for Level 3 confirmational analysis. Selection of the samples for Level 3 analysis will be determined by the field team leader or site hydrogeologist. The determination will be based on field screening. For the surface soil analyzed for TCL/TAL, screening results (Level 2) will be used to select a biased location so that the analysis is performed near the area with the highest contaminant concentrations. All samples will be collected in accordance with the QAPP. QC samples that will be collected at Site 59 are indicated in Table 4-6.

One sample will be collected from one of the borings (at the 10-foot depth) at Site 59 for geotechnical analyses. The purpose of the analyses is to obtain initial geotechnical and fate and transport data on subsurface soils for OU-3. The hydrogeologist will select the sample for the analyses in the field. The sample will be analyzed for grain size, Atterberg limits, and moisture content in accordance with Section 5.4.2.5 of the *QAPP* (ref. 1). Additional analyses to support fate and transport assessment include pH (SW-846 Method 9045), alkalinity (EPA 310.1M), cation exchange capacity (SW-846 Method 9080), and total organic carbon (EPA Method 415.1M).

4.6.7 Groundwater Sampling and Analysis

Groundwater contamination beneath Site 59 is not suspected because of the low mobility of PAHs, pesticides, and herbicides. Therefore, no monitoring wells or groundwater sampling are proposed for the site.
TAB

ſ

[

[]

A SPACE

and the

1000

1

:

1

Section 5-Additional Data Collection

5.0 Additional Data Collection

5.1 Investigation of Potential Contamination near MW-24

MW-24 is located in the southwest section of OU-3. No known RI sites are located in the immediate vicinity of this well. In November 1993, low levels (less than 0.01 parts per billion [ppb]) of PAHs were detected in MW-24, although none of the concentrations exceeded EPA Region III's risk-based concentrations for tap water. These compounds have not been detected in this well during previous sampling events. To assess the presence of contamination, MW-24 will be purged in accordance with the procedures outlined in Section 5.4.2.7 of the QAPP (ref. 1). The well will be sampled for PAHs by SW 846 Method 8100 at an FBL (Level 3 data quality) in accordance with the procedures outlined in Section 5.1 of the QAPP. If constituents are detected above established background concentrations or PRGs, whichever is higher, a plan will be developed for investigating sources near MW-24.

5.2 Fluvial Aquifer Characteristics

After well development, the hydraulic conductivity of the water-bearing zone in which each new monitoring well in OU-3 is screened will be estimated using a pneumatic slug test method. The existing wells will not be tested because they have been tested previously (RI Report, 1990). The primary advantages of slug testing are twofold: it creates little, if any, investigation-derived wastes to dispose of, and performing the test and collecting the data is relatively simple. The values of hydraulic conductivity derived from the slug tests will provide information useful in estimating groundwater flow rates within the Fluvial Aquifer. This information will also be useful in remedial design if sampling results indicate that remedial action is needed in OU-3 to address groundwater contamination.

Slug tests are accomplished by causing an instantaneous change in the water level in the well and observing the recovery of the water level to its static level as a function of time. Changes in water level can be accomplished by suddenly introducing or removing a known volume of water into or from the well. This can be done by suddenly introducing or removing a cylindrical object of known volume (a slug) or by using a pneumatic device to evacuate the well bore under pressure, followed by an instantaneous release of pressure. The water level response in the well bore is generally observed with a pressure transducer placed below the water table coupled to an automatic data logger.

The pneumatic slug test method will allow testing to be performed quickly, and the results will eliminate much of the noise in the very-early-time-data that is often present in manual slug test methods. All materials used in the slug test (e.g., water level tapes, pressure transducers) will be decontaminated before use in accordance with Section 5.4.2.9 of the *OAPP* (ref. 1).

To analyze the slug data test, the project hydrogeologist will select a published, generally accepted analytical method (such as Bouwer, 1989) (ref. 19) that is appropriate for the hydrogeologic conditions at DDMT.

5.3 Preliminary Data Needs for Remedial Alternatives

After the RI field work has been completed, the data will be evaluated to assess the appropriate future disposition of a site (NFA, FS, or IRA). Sites that require a feasibility study to meet the objectives of the program may require additional data collection. The additional data will be used to support evaluation of remedial alternatives, to refine selection of alternatives, or to collect data to support remedial design activities.

5.3.1 Initial Alternatives

A cursory review of the RI sites at OU-3 has been conducted to develop a list of preliminary remedial alternatives. These initial alternatives have been identified from existing data, the preliminary contaminants of concern, and knowledge about treatment technologies available. The initial alternatives do not represent a complete, detailed evaluation of alternatives, nor do they represent the final remedy. They are intended to represent an initial attempt at identifying alternatives that are likely to be on the final list for evaluation of site remedial action. Initial alternatives for remediation of soil and sediment at each site are provided in Table 5-1 (alternatives listed are for soil and sediment only).

Evaluation of remedial alternatives for groundwater will occur during a later phase of site investigation. After this initial phase of the investigations at OU-3 is completed, groundwater at DDMT will be evaluated facilitywide. To improve the efficiency of the groundwater remediation process, remedial strategies for groundwater will be implemented for the entire facility, and for those sites that are sources of potential groundwater contamination. The facilitywide strategy for groundwater is discussed in Section 4 of the OU-4 FSP.

5.3.2 Data Collection

For the remedial alternatives listed for each site in Table 5-1, a preliminary set of data has been identified for collection during the field effort. These data will help evaluate the identified alternatives. A decision will be made in the field for each site as to whether the identified data need to be collected during the RI field investigation. This decision will depend upon the following:

 Concentration of contamination at levels indicating FS activities may be required

					_													_	
		Page 1 of 2	Data Need for Initial	Evaluation of Alternatives ^d	TCLP, hazardous	characteristics	Total metals, Btu,	ash content	Soil boring blow counts	Moisture content, porosity,	pH, temperature, TOC,	microbial poulation,	dissolved oxygen (soil and	groundwater)	TCLP, hazardous	characteristics	Total metals, Btu	ash content	Soil boring blow counts
	natives for RI Sites	JIESSEE	Potential Remedial	Options'	Land disposal		Incincration		Cover	Bioremediation					Land disposal		Incineration		Cover
Table S-1	ing of Remedial Altern Operable Unit 3	reportations, ren	Potential Contaminants	to Be Remediated ^b	VOCs, PAHs,	pesticides/PCBs									Pesticides				
	y Screen	nerense		Media	Soil										Soil				
	Preliminar			Description	Former PCB transformer storage	3152									PAD 267	(pesticides, herbicides)			
				Site Number ⁴	48										58				

.

125 75

-

mgm95.DDMT.OU3/016.xls

Site Number Site Number 59 Conly remedia General categ collected bec activities and activities and grouped unde	Preliminary Building 273 (pesticides, cleaners) (pesticides, cleaners) 1 investigation (RU) sites are included portes of potential contaminants are lause limited analytical data are avail texisting data.	Screen Defense Soil f in this ta isted. The table for m uring the	Table 5-1 ng of Remedial Altern Operable Unit 3 Depot Memphis, Ten Potential Contaminants to Be Remediated ^b Pesticides Pesticides rist is not all inclusive, nor any sites. The listed potent RI field activities are not inc generally also represent the	latives for RI Sites nessee Potential Remedial Options ⁶ Land disposal Incineration Incineration Cover Cover Incineration on the anal ris it a limitation Cover C	Page 2 of 2 Data Need for Initial Data Need for Initial Evaluation of Alternatives ⁴ TCLP, hazardous characteristics Total metals, Btu, ash content Soil boring blow counts Soil boring blow counts is content sheat to be n reported would be would be
Pyrouysus, or This table is a remedial alto	wet au oxuation as summer recurron generalized list of potential data ne matives to be evaluated.	eds for the	: RJ field activities. It is not	intended to collect data for	alt potential

mgm95-DDMT-0U3/016.xb

.

125 76

9/19/05

- Spatial magnitude of contamination beyond an appropriate extent for a removal action
- Character of contaminants (VOCs, PAHs, metals, etc.) indicating applicable remedial options

The decision about collecting the data to evaluate remedial alternatives will be made by the field team leader, site hydrogeologist, and the project manager. Data collection for future phases of field investigation should be identified by using data collected in the RI field investigation and by completing a detailed identification of remedial alternatives for each site.

5.4 Water Level Measurements

The flow direction of the Fluvial Aquifer in OU-3 is not well defined because of the location of the existing monitoring wells and the lack of water level data. Flow direction needs to be better understood to evaluate future well locations.

Quarterly water level data will be collected from all existing wells and wells planned for installation in OU-3. These data will provide valuable information on groundwater flow direction in OU-3.

5.5 Quality Assurance/Quality Control in the Field

The goal of QA in the field is to provide data of known quality to the project team to support the decision-making process. Implementing QA goals is the field team leader's responsibility. As the lead field representative, the field team leader will be responsible for consistently implementing QA/QC measures at the site and for performing field activities in accordance with approved work plans, policies, and field procedures. Sections 3 and 4 of the QAPP (ref. 1) provide details to meet the goals of QA during the field investigation.

Numerous procedures have been developed for the field activities that will occur at DDMT. These procedures will provide for greater consistency in the work performed and provide for high-quality sample collection and analysis. The procedures outlined in the *QAPP* that address the field effort are as follows:

- Field documentation
- Sample numbering and containers
- Sample chain of custody

- Sample shipment
- Field QC samples
- Disposal of investigation-derived wastes
- Field instrument calibration
- Soil, groundwater, sediment, and surface water sampling
- Soil boring and monitoring well drilling
- Geophysical survey and logging
- Surveying

Field QC samples will be collected to evaluate the quality and validity of the analytical data. QC samples will also assist in evaluating whether any of the contamination that may be detected could have been introduced by the sample collection and handling procedures.

The types of field QC samples that will be collected and the rules for determining the number of samples are as follows:

- Trip blanks: one per day per cooler containing VOC samples
- Equipment blanks: one per day per type of equipment used for collecting a sample
- Field blanks: one per week per source of water used for decontamination
- Field duplicates: 5 percent of Level 2 samples and 10 percent of Level 3 samples
- Matrix spike/matrix spike duplicates: 5 percent of the samples collected from each matrix; at least one per matrix every 14 days
- Split samples: to be collected at a rate of approximately 1 percent; two will be collected during the OU-3 investigation

The type and number of field QC samples that will be collected at each of the RI sites are shown in the sample summary tables in Section 4 (Tables 4-2 through 4-6).

TAB

ľ.

[]

Theory

[]

Ľ

÷.

.....

• •

: .

|

Appendix A - References

Appendix A **References**

•

Appendix A References

- 1. CH2M HILL. Generic Quality Assurance Project Plan for Defense Distribution Depot Memphis. February 1995.
- 2. U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency. Water Quality Biological Study No. 32-24-0733-86, Investigation of Fire Reservoir. Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee. March 10-14, 1986.
- 3. CH2M HILL. Generic Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study Work Plan for Defense Distribution Depot Memphis. March 1995.
- 4. National Oceanographic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA). *Climatic Atlas* of the United States. Asheville, North Carolina. 1983.
- 5. *Master Plan Report*. Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee. Harland Bartholemew and Associates, Inc. July 1988.
- Graham, D.D. and Parks, W.S. Potential for Leakage Among Principal Aquifers in the Memphis Area, Tennessee. U.S. Geological Survey. Water-Res. Invest. Rep. 85-4295. 1986.
- Wells, F.G. Groundwater Resources of Western Tennessee, with a discussion of the chemical character of the water, by F.G. Wells and M.D. Foster. U.S. Geological Survey Water-Supply Paper 656. 1933.
- 8. Moore, G.K. Geology and Hydrology of the Claiborne Group in Western Tennessee. Geol. Surv. Water-Supply Paper 1809-F. 1965.
- Nyman, D.J. Predicted Hydrologic Effects of Pumping from the Lichterman Well Field in the Memphis Area, Tennessee. Geol. Surv. Water-Supply Paper 1819-B, 1985.
- 10. Law Environmental. Remedial Investigation at DDMT, Final Report. August 1990.
- 11. Groundwater Monitoring Results Report for Defense Depot Memphis, Volume 1 of 9. Environmental Science and Engineering, January 1994.
- 12. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund: Volume 1—Human Health Evaluation Manual (Part B, Development of Risk-based Preliminary Remediation Goals). Publication 9285.7-01B, December 1991.

GNV/10016EA4.WP5

- 13. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Risk Assessment Guidance for Superfund: Volume 1—Human Health Evaluation Manual (Part A). Interim Final. EPA/540/1-89/002. December 1989.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Methods of Evaluating the Attainment of Cleanup Standards: Volume 1—Soils and Solid Media. EPA230/02-89-042. 1989.
- 15. CH2M HILL. Operable Unit 4 Field Sampling Plan. Draft Final. April 1995.
- 16. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. RCRA Facility Assessment, Defense Depot Memphis Tennessee. January 1990.
- 17. U.S. Army Toxic and Hazardous Materials Agency. Installation Assessment of Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee. July 1982.
- U.S. Army Environmental Hygiene Agency. Environmental Audit No. 43-21-1387-86. Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee. 1985.
- Bouwer, H. 1989. "The Bouwer and Rice Slug Test-An Update." Groundwater. Vol. 27, No. 3.

TAB

ſ

1

.

S. S. S.

P. C. P.

1 T 4 S

: .

Appendix B- Exisiting Sampling Data

.

Appendix B Existing Sampling Data

Appendix B—Table of Contents Existing Sampling Data Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

Appendix B Date of Page Numbers Study Title Study Investigator **Purpose of Investigation Investigation** B-2 **Remedial Investigation** Law Environmental August 1990 Groundwater, soil, surface water, and sediment sampling Feasibility Study Lake/pond water and sediment 8-16 USAEHA March 1986 Water Quality Biological Study sampling, associated fish Number 32-24-0733-86 species analysis Groundwater Monitoring B-23 Environmental Science & January 1994 Groundwater sampling **Results Report for Defense** Engineering, Inc. (ESE) Deput Memphis, Volume 1 of 9

GNV/10016FED.DOC

Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study Law Environmental August 1990





Positive Results in Scdiments Table B-1

Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

					PHASE I					
			LAKE DANIEI	NOS				GOLF COUR.	SE POND	
PARAMETER	SD-1-SS	6-1-QS	SD-2-SS	SD-2-9	SS-E-OS	\$D-3-9	SD-4-SS	SD-4-9	SD-5-SS	\$D-5-9

HALOGENATED VOLATILES ug/kg

Methylene chluride	42B	388	228	22B	28H	22B	27B	29B	148	258

NONHALOGENATED VOLATILES ug/kg

Acetone	718	758	46B	513	43B	36H	170	140	21	74
2-Buianone	н	30)	181	;	I	I	3	51	ł	ı
Toluche	;	;	I	:	:	I	Ι	I	:	21
HALOGENATED SEMIVOLATIL	LES ug/kg									

B-5

Peatachlarophenol	:		-	1	1		1	2701	I
						.			
NONHALOGENATED SEMIVOLATIL	ES up/kg								

bis(2-Ethythexy1) phihalate	550	570	5803	530J	1094	6403	710)	63W	1017	7101
Benzoie acid	1601	4903	3001	2901	1601	4703	6801	1924	12001	F04ń
N-Nitrosodipticnylumine	10091		1709.1		2708J	1008J	1 H 061	:	2803J	19087

125 89

Source: RI Report, 1990

000*'r	41	, 1	,	ן י
4'tDDE	36	I	1	
7.'tt'*	:	ł	I	

J,4-DDD J,7 L L J,5 L 190D 280D 3000 J,4-DDE 36 - - - - - 10 - 36 4602 J,4-DDE 36 - - - - - 23000 J,4-DDE 36 - - - - 23000 J,4-DDE 36 - - - 23000 J,4-DDF - - - - 23000 J,4-DDF - - - - 23000 J,4-DDF - - - - 23000 J,4-DMT - - - - 23000 J,100 - - - - 23000	PESTICIDES ug/kg									
4,4:EDE 36 68D 64D 46/Z 4,4:EDY 2900E Endusultan-1 200Z	14-DDD	47	1	,	ŧ	45	I	190D	280D	30000
4,4-DIYT 2900D Endusulfan-l - - - - 200D	4'4-DDE	36	ł	1	ı	0011	:	68D	079 97	460Z
Endwalfan-l 200Z	4.4'-DIYT	:	1	I	I	I	1	ł	I	2900D
	Endosultan-I	I	ł	I	I	I	1	I	1	2002

SD-5-9 0096 0,494() 1700 1200 2003 6803 **2**00 690 106E 6901 7501 [0][1] 1503 3501 X()†] [40] SD-5-SS 16,500 3000 1100 16<u>0</u> 071 1300 2400 1300 1800 3307 120J 10 2001 970 **N**0% SD 49 - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 ł. I SD-4-SS ı 1001 1001 00 900 ł ł : : : ł SD-3-9 1 ; T ł : ÷ ÷ 1 I. 1 1 ł ŧ ; SD-3-SS 3.4KD 7003 2103 3301 2301 2301 3801 2001 **1901** 300 6101 : Т 1 1 SD-2-9 ł ; ł. I. 1 1 1 1 1 LAKE DANIELSON SD-2-SS 1001 3 ł Т t 1 1 SD-1-9 1 1 4 F : 1 SD-1-55 7 Hydrocurburs (PAHs) Dihenzy(a,h)anthracene Indeno(1,2,3-ed)pyrene Polynuctear Aramatic Benzo(b)fluoranthene Benzo(k)Nuurantitene denvo(g,h,i)perylene 3cn2o(a)anthraccne Bcitzu(ä)pyreite PARAMETER Acenuphthene Phenaultaene Fluoranthene Total PAHs Anthrucene Chrysene Flaarene Pyrene PESI

Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee **Positive Results in Sediments**

Table B-1

1 HASE I

GOLF COURSE POND

125 90

C10129

;

:

Table B-1

Positive Results in Sediments

. .

Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

					PHASE I					
			TAKE DANIE	NOST				GOLF COURS	IE POND	
PARAMETER	SD-1-3S	6-1-0 5	SD-2-SS	SD-2-9	SD-3-55	6-E-OS	5D-4-SS	SD-4-9	SD-5-SS	\$D-5-9

METALS mg/kg

Lead	:	:	1	1	ł	1	ŝ	9	16	35
Menury	0:07	0.05	0.05	0.05	;	•	0.05	0.04	0.06	0.04
Burium	76	88,4	122	110	89,7	66	8	95.2	101	ş
Cadmium	0.7B	1	1	1	;	•	:	:	0.9R	1
Chromium **	13	E	12	0	12	3 ,	ET	=	28	21
Cupper	20	53	16	1	15	16	51	ļ	28	26
Nickel	Ξ	7	14	12	7	13	E1	6	Ŧ	Ā
Zinc	44.5N	47.BN	50.9N	47.6N	48.8N	45.4N	44.7N	43.2N	N0,0K	66.KN

B (horganic) = Value less than the Contract Required Detection Limit (CRDL), but greater than the Instrument Detection Limit (IDL).

B (Organic) = Found in method blank.

B-7

 $\mathbf{D} = \mathbf{I} \mathrm{dentified}$ in an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.

J = Estimated value less than the sample quantitation limit, but greater than zero.

N = Spiked sample recovery not within control himits.

 $\mathbf{Z} = \mathbf{M}$ atrix interference; compound not positively identifiable.

 $^{++}$ = Kee discinction between Chromium (III) and Chromium (VI),

-- = Not delected.

Positive Results in Surface Water Operable Unit 3 Table B-2

Tennessee
Memphis,
ise Depot
Defer

	Ambient V	Vatcr				LAKE DAI	NIELSON			Ŭ	OLF COUR	LE POND	-		
	Quality Cri	licria					LAKE		-	_				DRAIN	aDV:
-	Aquaile L	ífe		LAKEW	VATER		ULET	LAKE DR	ADNAGE	NOND W	ATER	POND DR.	AINAGE	DLC	HES
PARAMETER	Acute	Chronic	EMS	\$W6	SW7	8W8	SW13	6MS	SW12	SW4	sws	01MS	ITMS	SW2	SW14

HALOGENATED VOLATILES (ug/)

								-							
Meilylene chloride	000'11	NA	IBJ	t	2BJ	18.1	ł	18)	;	I	I	1	:	181	I
NONHALOGENATED VOLATILE	S (ug/))														

	ļ														
2-Bulanone			I	÷	r	r	t	ı	t	I	1	1	1	1	4]
Aceione	V N	NA.	38,3	1	2BJ	2BJ	1	188	Į4	2BJ	2BJ	181	Ş	5BJ	010
O Total xylenes	NA	NA	ł	:	ı	,	1	,)	;	;	I	Γ	:	
NONHALOGENATED SEMIVOL	/din) SELITA.	ê													
Benzoic actd	AN N	AN		 	I	,	SBI	ı	6BJ			1	1		381
bis(2-Ethytheuyl) phthalate	940	m	38,	ı	2BJ	181	6BJ	12BJ	3BJ	18E	58,	781	R	ł	361
Buryl henzyl plututute	940	e.	I	I	t	ŀ	ŧ	ţ	t	t	I	I	ŧ	1	1
Di-n-butyl phthalale	940	Ē	ł	:	I	ı	ł	:	t	:	ł	16	I	;	;
Di-n-octyl plubalate	940	m	I	I	I	I	I	I	ı	I	I	3R)	;	ł	1
Fluoranthene	NA	NA	:	:	:	ı	;	:	,	1	:	1	2	1	;
N-Nitresodiphenylamine	٩Z	ΝA	1	1	R	ı	1	1	NUT.	1	Я	[7	1	I	;
Pyrtau	۷Z	VN	I	ı	t	,	I	ı	;	ı	;	31	F	:	I

PESTICIDES (ug/)

																9
4-DDE	1050	٧N	:	.21	3	Ļ	:	;	CI (3)	1	;	.14	1810	۰ ۱	ŀ	2
4'-DDT	:	0.001	1	1	t	1	1	91.	2.2D	I	;	.27	06'I	ı	ŀ	
indosul[an-]			1	1	ı	ı	1	1	1	1	1	1	;	.16Z	;	

Source: RI Report, 1990

125

Positive Results in Surface Water Table B-2

Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee **Operable Unit 3**

LF COURSE POND		TER POND DRAINAGE	
00		E POND WAT	
•		LAKE DRAINAGE	
LAKE DANIELSON	LAKE	INLET	
-		LAKE WATER	
Ambical Water	Quality Criteria	Aquatic Life	

SW14

SW2

11MS 01MS

SW2

SW4

SW12

SW9

SWIB

SWB

LMS

SW6

SW3

Chronic

Acute

PARAMETER

7-,

DRAINAGE DITCHES

METALS (ug/)

Arsenic	360	190	:	48	41	37	I	47	30	:	:	1	1	ł	I
רגוול	82	3.2	I	I	I	I	;	295	8	I	1	ı	S	I	:
Bartum	۲Z	٨N	1518	13B	158	158	8	603	- R6	14B	14B	268	2	76B	42
Cedmium			ł	I	1	1	ı	~	6	ŧ	I	:	I	I	I
Chromium			1	ı	ı	ı	ı	ł	20	:	I	I	I	20	9
Copper	19	12	72	24B	20B	198	1	68	2	46	ŝ	53	30	23B	;
Silver			I	I	1	:	ſ	11	I	I	I	:	I	1	ł
Zinc	120	110	68	41	32	37	54	400	150	22	22	81	110	29	£
NA - Noi Availahle															

B (Inorganic) = Value less than the Contract Required Detection Littrit (CRDL) but greate than the Instructant Detection Littrit (IDL).

B (Organic) = Found in method blank.

 $\mathbf{D} \neq \mathsf{ldenlfhed}$ in an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.

J = Estimated value less than the sample quantitation thmit hut greater than zero.

 $\mathbf{X} = \mathbf{M}$ atrix interference; compound not positively identifiable.

-- = Not detected.

Table B-3 Positive Results in Groundwater 125 94 Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

-

PARAMETER (UG/L)	DATE	MCL	MW24 MW25 MW26

HALOGENATED VOLATILES (ug/l)

Carbon Tetrachloride	PHASE I	5	 21	51
	PHASE II		 	5
Chloroform	PHASE I	100(c)	 -+	1J
	ΡΗΑΣΕ Π		 	2J
Methylene chloride	PHASE I	5	 	1BJ
· · ·	PHASE II		 	
Tetrachlorethene	PHASE I	5	 8	10
	PHASE II		 7	5
Trichloroethene	PHASE I	5	 	3 J
	PHASE II		 	3J

NONHALOGENATED VOLATILES (ug/l)

Acetone	PHASE I	[3]	2BJ	4J
	PHASE II			

NONHALOGENATED SEMIVOLATILES (ug/l)

Di-n-butyl phthalate	PHASE I				-+
_	PHASE II				
Di-n-octyl phthalate	PHASE [+-		31
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine	PHASE I		2J	5J	
Phenoi	PHASE 11		-		
bis(2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate	PHASE I		5J		91
	PHASE II				

METALS (ug/l)

Arsenic	PHASE I	50			
	PHASE II				50
Lead	PHASE I	50/15 (e)	152*	128	
	PHASE II			70	50
Mercury	PHASE I	2	.4N	1.7	.4N
	PHASE II				
Antimony	PHASE I	6			
-	PHASE II			60	50
Barium	PHASEI	2000	167	1960	908
	PHASE II		81	410	380

Source: RI Report, 1990

• .

Table B-3 Positive Results in Groundwater Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

PARAMETER (UG/L)	DATE	MCL.	MW24	M₩25	M₩26
Cadmium	PHASE I	5	18N*	+-	
	PHASE II		_		
Chromium (d)	PHAS E İ	100	31	337	150
	PHASE Π			40	30
Copper	PHASE I	1300 (f)	88	209	268
	PHASE II		50	20	40
Nickel	PHASE I	100	26	125	58
	PHASE II				
Zinc	PHASE I	5000 (h)	193	408	400
	PHASE II		170	120	120

MCL - SDWA Maximum Containment Level

(c) Total trihalomethanes

(d) No distinction between Chromium III and Chromium VI.

(e) MCL/ Action Level

(f) MCLG. Primary MCL is Treatment Technique.

(h) Secondary MCL

B (Inorganic) = Value less than the Contract Required Detection Limit (CRDL) but greater than the Instrument Detection Limit (IDL).

B (Organic) = Found in method blank.

J = Estimated value less than the sample quantitation limit but greater than zero.

N = Spiked sample recovery not within control limits.

* = Duplicate analysis not within control limits.

- = Not detected.

NA = Not Available.

Table B-4Positive Results in Surface Soils125Old Transformer Storage Yard0Operable Unit 396Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

	-	РНА	PHASE I		
PARAMETER		SS30	SS31		

HALOGENATED VOLATILES (ug/kg)

Methylene chloride	31	7B

NONHALOGENATED VOLATILES (ug/kg)

Acetone	4J	7JB
Toluene	3J	-

NONHALOGENATED SEMIVOLATILES (ug/kg)

bis(2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate	350BJ	460B
Polynuclear Aromatic		
Hydrocarbons (PAHs)		
Benzo(a)anthracene	240J	-
Benzo(a)pyrene	1905	
Benzo(b)fluoranthene	3201	-
Benzo(g,h,i)perylene	2301	_
Chrysene	230J	_
Fluoranthene	390J	_
Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene	180J	_
Phenanthrene	210J	-
Pyrene	340J	+-
Total PAHs	2330	-

PESTICIDES (ug/kg)

4,4-DDE	78D	18
4,4-DDT	1000D	190D

METALS (mg/kg)

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Arsenic	19	12
Lead	81	5
Mercury	0.04	0.02
Antimony	4	

Table B-4 Positive Results in Surface Soils Old Transformer Storage Yard Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

· . • PHASE I . **SS30 SS31** PARAMETER 21.9 78.1 Barium Cadmium 1 --10 Chromium ** 14 22 6 Copper 13 3 Nickel Silver 0.6 --69 11 Zinc

B (Organic) = Found in method blank.

 $\mathbf{D} = \mathbf{Identified}$ in an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.

J = Estimated value less than the sample quantitation limit, but greater than zero.

– = Not detected.

** = No distinction beween Chromium (III) and Chromium (VI).

Source: RI Report, 1990

125 97

Table B-5 Positive Results in Surface Soils Golf Course Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

125 98

Inessee

		PHASE II			
PARAMETER	SS12	SS13	\$ 51 4	SS37	SS50

HALOGENATED VOLATILES ug/kg

Chloroform	-		2J		+-
Methylene chloride	14 B	21B	15B	13B	16B
Tetrachlorethene	_			21	-
Trichloroethene	_		↔	4J	

NONHALOGENATED VOLATILES ug/kg

Acetone	9J	38	24	15	22
Toluene	17	91	6J	3J	••
Total xylenes				L8	

NONHALOGENATED SEMIVOLATILES ug/kg

bis(2-Ethylhexyl) phthalate	[500B]	2200BJ	2700B	710BJ	1700B
N-Nitrosodiphenylamine	260J	280J	340J	-	
Polynuclear Aromatic					1
Hydrocarbons (PAHs)					
Acenaphthene					200J
Anthracene			2 80 J		330J
Benzo(a)anthracene	-	2701	920J	_	810J
Benzo(a)pyrene	-	340J	930J		610J
Benzo(b)fluoranthene	-	4201	11 0 0J	620J	11000
Benzo(g,h,i)perylene	-		780J	••	
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	ļ _	3401	11 00 J		
Chrysene	-	390J	1 200 J		990J
Fluoranthene	3301	630J	2700	780J	2200
Fluorene	1 -			_	160J
Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene			7001	_	370J
Phenanthrene	-	310J	1600J	520 J	2000
Pyrene	230J	560J	1 700J	580J	2500
Total PAHs	560	3,260	13,010	2.500	11,270



Table B-5Positive Results in Surface Soils

Golf Course

125 99

Operable Unit 3

Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

	•	-	· · ·		PHA	SE I	· ·	PHASE II
PARAMETER				\$\$12	\$\$13	SS14	\$\$37	\$\$50

PESTICIDES ug/kg

4,4'-DDE	2000D	340D		1200D	4300D
4,4'-DDT	870	290		4000D	3000DJ
Dieldrin	760D	830D	2900D	1400D	3800D
Heptachlor					1100Z
Heptachlor epoxide				_	340Z
beta-BHC					2500

METALS mg/kg

Arsenic	33	22	41	42	12
Lead	80G*	50G*	80G*	71 .	157
Mercury	0.15N	0.1N	0.8N	0.32	0.5
Antimony			5.0B	5.0	
Barium	95.8	118	117	76.9	78.4
Cadmium				2.0	1.9
Chromium **	20G	13G	16G	13	17
Соррег	34*	21*	26*	18	15
Nickel	13*	12*	12*	i 1	8
Zinc	81.2G	89.3G	82.3G	80.4	290

B (Inorganic) = Value less than the Contract Required Detection Limit (CRDL), but greater than the Instrument Detection Limit (IDL).

8 (Organic) = Found in method blank.

D = Identified in an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.

G = Native analyte > 4 times spike added, therefore acceptance criteria do not apply.

J = Estimated value less than the sample quantitation limit, but greater than zero.

N = Spiked sample recovery not within control limits.

Z = Matrix interference; compound not positively identifiable.

* = Duplicate analysis not within control limits.

** = No distinction between Chromium (III) and Chromium (VI)

- = Not detected.

Water Quality Biological Study Number 32-24-0733-86 United States Army Environmental Hygiene Agency (USAEHA) March 1986

Table B-6 Positive Results in Surface Water Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

125	1 (0 1	Į
-----	-----	-----	---

.

			1				GOLF COURSE	
		-		LAKE DA	NIELSON		POND	
			SAMPLE SITE				SAMPLE SITE	
PARAMETER	DETECTION	SAMPLE						
	LIMIT	DATES	<u> </u>	2	3	4	5	
METALS (mg/l)								
ANTIMONY	1.00	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
ARSENIC	0.01	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
BERYLLIUM	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	~.	-	-	-+		
CADMIUM	0.025	H&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
CHROMIUM	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	-		-	-	-	
COPPER	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
LEAD	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	- 1	-	-	-	-	
MERCURY	0.002	11&12 MARCH 86	-		-			
NICKEL	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86				-		
SELENTUM	0.01	H&12 MARCH 86		-		-		
THALLIUM	0.01	11&12 MARCH 86	-		-	-	-	
ZINC	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	- 1			-	-	
BASE NEUTRALS (ug / I)								
BENZIDENE 4-CHLORO-J-METHYLPHENOL	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	-	-	-	
3-J'-DICHLOROBENZIDENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	_	_	_	-		
BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL) ETHER	10	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	-	_	-	
BIS(2-CHLOROETHOXY) METHANE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
BIS(2-CHLOROISOPROPYL) ETHER	10	11&12 MARCH 86	- 1				-	
4-BROMOPHENYL PHENYL FTHER	10	11&12 MARCH 86				_	· _	
4-CHLOROPHENYL PHENYL ETHER	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	_	_	_	
ISOPHORONE	10	IL&12 MARCH 86	_	_	_	-	_	
NTROBENZENE	10	IL&12 MARCH 86	_	_	_	-	_	
2 4 DINTROTOLUENE	10	ILAN2 MARCH 86	-		-	_		
	10	ILAN2 MARCH 86						
	10	ILAI2 MARCH 86		_		-		
	10		_		_	_		
N NTEROSODI N PROPYLAMINE	10	ILAI2 MARCH 80		-	-	-	-	
	10	ILAIS MARCHING	_	-	-	-	-	
	10	HOLZ MARCH 60	-	-	-	-	-	
BIS(2-ETHTLEEXIL) FRIHALATE	10	HOLL MARCH 80	-	-	-	-	1 21	
DI-N-BUTTL PHTHALATE	10	Hatz MARCH 85	-	-				
DI-N-QCITL PHIHALAIE	10	Hall MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	, y	
	10	HALL MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
ACENAPTHENE	10	HALL MARCH 16	· -	-	-	-	-	
ACENAPHTHYLENE	10	H&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
ANTHRACENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
ENZO(A)ANTHRACENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
BENZO(A)PYRENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-	
BENZO(B)FLUORANTHENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86				_	-	

Source: USAEHA, 1986

Table B-6 Positive Results in Surface Water Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

125 102

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
							GOLFCOURSE
· .		• •		LAKE DA	NTELSON		POND
· ·	•			SAMPI	E SITE		SAMPLE SITE
PARAMETER	DETECTION	SAMPLE					· ·
		DATES	<u> </u>	2	3	4	5
BENZO(K)FLUORANTHENE	۱O	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-		
CHRYSENE	lO	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-		-
FLUORANTHENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
NAPTHALENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	- 1	-	- '	-	-
PHENANTHRENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
PYRENE	10	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-		-
HEXACHLOROCYCLOPENTADIENE	10	11412 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
	01	11412 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
HEXACHLOROBUTADIENE	10	11ati2 MARCH 86	-	-	-		-
	10	Hatz MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
	10	(1012 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
	10	HALL MARCH 86	- 1	-	-	-	-
	10	HALL MAKCH 80	-	-	-	-	-
	10	HATZ MAKCH 80	-	-	-	_	-
ENTRY CH DEVENE	10	11612 MARCH 80	-	-	-	-	-
	25	11612 MARCH 80	-	-	-		_
IDEN(X) 7 1.C D)PVBENE	23	11612 MARCH 80	-	-	-	-	-
	23	TIAL 4 MAKCH 60	-	_		-	
ACID EXTRACTABLES (ug / I)							
2-CHLOROPHENOL	25	11&12 MARCH 86			-		_
2,4-DICHLOROPHENOL	25	11&12 MARCH 86	· _			_	-
2,4-DIMETHYLPHENOL	25	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	_	_	-
2-NITROPHENOL	25	LI&12 MARCH 86	_	_	-		
4-NTTROPHENOL	25	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	-	-	_
PENTACHLOROPHENOL	25	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-		-
PHENOL	25	11&12 MARCH 86			-	-	-
2.4.5-TRICHLOROPHENOL	250	D&12 MARCH 86	-		-	-	-
2,4-DINITROPHENOL	250	IL&12 MARCH 86	-	_	-	-	_
2-METHYL-4,6-DINITROPHENOL	250	H&12 MARCH 86		-	-	-	-
PESTICIDES / PCB'S (ug / 1)							
ALDRIN	0.16	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
ALPHA BHC	0.20	11&12 MARCH 86	-		-	-	-
вета вис	0.20	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-		_
CHLORDANE (TECH)	1.20	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-		-
CHLORDANE - CIS	0.16	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
CHLORDANE - TRANS	0.16	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
HLORPYRIFOS	0.24	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
4-D (ACID EQUIV)	3.80	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-		-
	0.40	11&12 MARCH 86	L BDL	-	-	+	

Source: USAEHA, 1986

Table B-6 Positive Results in Surface Water Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

125 103

	,							
							GOLFCOURSE	
				LAKE DAN		POND		
				SAMPLE	SITE		SAMPLE SITE	
PARAMETER ·	DETECTION	SAMPLE						
• .	LIMIT	DATES	1	2 . '	3	. 4	5	
P.P - DDD	0.40	11&12 MARCH 86	BDL	-			-	
O.P - DDE	0.40	11&12 MARCH 86	BDL.	-	-	-	-	
P.P' - DDE	0.40	11&12 MARCH 86	BDL.	-	-	-	-	
O.P - DDT	0.60	11&12 MARCH 86	BDL				_	
ዮ.ዮ - DIJT	0.60	11&12 MARCH 86	0.85	-	-	_	-	
DIAZINON	1.00	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	_	-	
DIELDRIN	0.24	H&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	_	-	
ENDRIN	0.04	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	_	-	-	
нсв	0.80	11&12 MARCH 86	_	_	_	-		
HEPTACHLOR	0.06	11&12 MARCH 86	_	_		-		
HEPTACHLOR EPOXIDE	0.16	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	_	
LINDANE	0.08	11&12 MARCH 86	_	_	-		_	
MALATHION	t.60	11&12 MARCH 86	l -	-	-	-	_	
METHOXYCHLOR	1.60	11&12 MARCH 86	- 1	-	-	-	-	
METHYL PARATHION	0.60	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	-		
IREX	0,04	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	-		
OXYCHLORDANE	0.16	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	_	_	-	
PARATHION	0.40	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	- ,		
PCB (AROCHLOR 1242, 1248, 1254, AND 1260)	0.80	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	_	_	-	
RONNEL	0.20	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	_	_	
SILVEX (ACID EQUIV)	0.50	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	-	_	_	
2.4.5-T (ACID EQUIV)	0.50	11&12 MARCH 86	_	_	-	-	-	
TOXAPHENE	1.60	11&12 MARCH 86		_	_		1 _	

-- = NOT DETECTED

BDL = BELOW DETECTION LIMITS

Table B-7 Positive Results in Sediments Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

125 104

		· .		LAKE D/	NIELSON		GOLF COURSE
PARAMETER	DETECTION LIMIT	SAMPLE DATES		SAMP	LE SITE		SAMPLE SITE
			1	2		4	5
METALS - SEDIMENT SUPERNATANT (mg/1)							
ANTIMONY	L.00	11/212 MARCH 86				<u> </u>	·
ARSENIC	0.01	LL&12 MARCH 86		_	_	-	-
BERYLLIUM	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86		-	-	_	-
CADMIUM	0.025	11&12 MARCH 86	· _	_	_	_	
CHROMIUM	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	_	_	_
COPPER	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	_	_	_		
LEAD	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	_		-	_	
MERCURY	0.002	11&12 MARCH 86	0.02	0.15	0.04	0.04	0.04
NICKEL	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	_			_	-
SELENIUM	0.01	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	-	_	
THALLIUM	0.01	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	-	
ZINC	0.05	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	-	_	-
ANTTMONY	8.30						T
ADSENTC	0.30	11212 MARCH 86	-		-	-	-
RED VI L II M	NA	Datz MARCH 86	16.9	17.7	13.5	20.8	23.1
	1.30	HALL MARCH 86	-	-	-	-	-
СИВОМЦИМ	NA	ILETZ MARCH 86	4.3	4.9	6.2	4.9	1.8
CORPER	NA	ILCT2 MARCH 86	106	50	74	52	11
LEAD	NA	LIACCE MARCH 86	08.0	84.4	70.5	81.0	39.8
MERCHEN	NA NA	Halla MARCH 86	560	280	240	250	79
	NA NA	HALD MARCH 86	0.24	0.4	0.42	0.27	0.36
	NA	HARTZ MARCH 85	21,7	21.7	22.5	21,7	16.3
	0.25	LIGHT MARCH 85	-	-	-	-	-
1040000 21NC	0.25	TI&12 MARCH 86		-	-		-
<u></u>	NA	11&12 MARCH 86	801	768	643	768	195

PESTICIDES / PCB'S (mg / kg)

The treased to be treased in prices							
ALDRIN	0.050	11&12 MARCH 86	-				
ALPHA BHC	0.020	11&12 MARCH 86	i -	-	-	_	_
ВЕТА ВНС	0.020	11&12 MARCH 86	- 1	_	-	_	
DELTA BHC	0.060	11&12 MARCH 86					
CHLORDANE	0,400	11&12 MARCH 86	- 1	-	_	_	-
CHLORDANE (METAB)*	0.400	11&12 MARCH 86	1.11	2.52	1.64	2.09	-
O.P - DDD	0.120	12&12 MARCH 86	0.95	1.34	0.77	0.97	_
P.F - DDD	0.100	11&12 MARCH 86	3.45	3.75	2.32	3.93	0.21
₽,₽ - DDE	0.120	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	-	-
J' - DDE	0.100	11&12 MARCH 86	2.71	5.31	4.22	4.75	0.22
<u>0,7 - D</u> DT	0.120	11&12 MARCH 86	0.18	0.24	0.18	0.21	_

Source: USAEHA, 1986

Table B-7 Positive Results in Sediments Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

125 105

.

				LAKE DA	NIELSON		GOLF COURSE
· · · · · ·	DETECTION	SAMPLE		SAMP	LESITE	•	SAMPLE SITE
PARAMETER	LIMIT	DATES					
	<u></u>		<u> </u>	2	3	4 '	5
P.P - DDT	0.150	11&12 MARCH 86	0.77	0.81	0.59	0.75	0.15
DIAZINON	0.052	11&12 MARCH 86	-			_	-
DIELDRIN	0.070	LI&12 MARCH 86	- 1		_	-	-
ENDRIN	0.130	LI&12 MARCH 86	-		_	_	-
НСВ	0.020	11&12 MARCH 86	-	_	-	-	_
HEPTACILLOR EPOXIDE	0.050	11&12 MARCH 86		_		_	_
LINDANE	0.024	13&12 MARCH 86	-	_		_	_
MALATHION	0.010	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	-	_	_
METHOXYCHLOR	0.500	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	-	_	-
METHYL PARATHION	0.030	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	_	_	_
MIREX	0.120	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	-	_	_
OXYCHLORDANE	0.050	H&12 MARCH 86	_		_	_	
PARATHION	0.020	11&12 MARCH 86	_		_	-	
PCB (AROCHLOR 1242, 1248, 1254, AND 1260)	0,100	11&12 MARCH 86	_	-	-		
TOXAPHENE	4.000	11&12 MARCH 86	-	-	_	_	_

* = Metabolized/total constituents chlordane that includes cis and trans chlordane

- - NOT DETECTED

BDL = BELOW DETECTION LIMPTS

Table B-8 Positive Results in Fish Tissue Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

·						
		LAKE DAN	IIELSÓN		golf do Pon	IURSE ID
		CATE	ISH		GOLDI	-15H
РАЛАМЕТЕЛ		В	¢	D	A	8
METALS (mg / kg)						
ANTIMONY	<0.992	<0.954	<1.05	<1.00	<0.992	<0.978
ARSENIC	<0.992	<0.954	<1.05	<1.00	<0.992	-0.978
BERYLLIUM	<0.198	<0,191	<0.209	<0.200	<0.198	-0 198
CADMIUM	<0.099	<0.095	<0.105	<0.100	<0.099	e0.098
CHROMIUM	< 2.98	< 2.86	< 3.14	× 3.00	< 2.98	< 2.94
COPPER	< 3.97	.50.R	e 4.18	4.00	- 3.97	~ 1 Gt
LEAD	0.794	1.15	0.628	< 0.200	0.397	~ 0.10A
MERCURY	< 0.039	< D.038	< 0.042	< 0.040	0 238	0 777
NICKEL	< 9.82	< 9.54	< 10.5	< 10.0	2 9 97	c 9 79
SELENIUM	< 0.198	< 0.191	< 0.209	< 0 200	- 3.24 - 0 199	مريد ج 104 م ج
THALLIUM	< 0.198	2 0 191	- 0.209	- 0 200	- 0.190	< 0.196
ZINC	3.57	198	3 07	200	16.0	10.150
	0.07	(5.5	0.31	3.0	10.9	
PESTICIDES / PCB'S (mg / kg)						
			-		-	
ALPHA BHC	-	-	-		-	-
BETA 6HC	-		-	-	-	-
DELTA BHC		_	-		-	
CHLORDANE		_	-		-	_
CHLORDANE (METAB)*	2.13	2.13	2.01	1.82	0.14	0,60
CHLORPYRIFOS	0.012	0.008	0.023	0.006	-	
D,P' - ODD	0.51	0.57	0.550	0.430	0.02	0.07
P.P' - 000	4.06	4.76	3.66	3.68	0.18	1.02
D.P" - ODE	+	+	+	+	+	
P.P - DOE	15.55	15.65	8.44	11.82	1.25	3 61
3,P* - DDT	0.59	0.63	0.29	0.47	_	
P.P - DOT	2.16	2.03	1.38	1.65	_	_
DIAZINON						
DIELORIN	0.51	0.18	D 15	0.16	0.03	
		-	-		0.00	
108	_	_	-		_	
IEPTACHLOR	1 _	_	_		-	_
		_	_		-	
INDANE			• _		+	*
		-	-		-	-
AETHOXYCHLOB		-	-	~	-	-
		-		-	-	-1
AIREX		-	-	[-	-f
		-	-		-	-
	1	•	+	+	+	+
	· · ·	-	-	1	-	
	-	-	-		-	
		-		-	_	-
	0.45	0.48	0.34	0.44	1.13	2.84
	- 1		-			

+ = Unable to separate

- = NOT DETECTED

* = Metabolized/total constituents chlordane that includes cis and trans chlordane

.

125 106

Groundwater Monitoring Results Report for DDMT Environmental Science & Engineering, Inc. January 1994

-
Table B-9 Positive Results (Above Detection Limits) of November 1993 Groundwater Monitoring Operable Unit 3 Defense Depot Memphis, Tennessee

ID	MW24	MW25	MW26		
COLLECTION DATE			11/14/93	11/13/93	11/09/93
COLLECTION TIME			17:00	08:20	19:30
PARAMETER LIST			CDDMTW.1	CDDMTW I	CDDMTW I
STORET*METHOD	PARAMETER NAME	UNITS	1		
32101-8010-G	BROMODICHLOROMETHANE	UGA	1		
32102*8010-G	CARBON TETRACHLORIDE	UG/L		1	3,16
34301 8010-C	CHLOROBENZENE	UG/L		i	
32106*8010-G	CHLOROFORM	UGAL			
34496 8010-G	1.1-DICHLOROETHANE	UG/L			
34531*8010-G	1.2-DICHLOROETHANE	UG/L			
34501*8010-G	1,1-DICHLOROETHYLENE	UGIL			
34546*8010-G	TRANS-1.2-DICHLORO ETHENE	UG/L			
34423*8010-G	METHYLENE CHLORIDE	UG/L			
34516*8010-G	I.I.2.2-TETRACHLORO ETHANE	UG/L			
<u>34475-8010-C</u>	TETRACHLOROETHENE	UGAL		11.2	6.50
34506*8010-G	I.I.I-TRICHL'ETHANE	UG/L			
34511*8010-G	1.1.2-TRICHL'ETHANE	UGIL			
39180*8010-G	TRICHLOROFTHENE	UG/L			1.29
34010*8020-G	TOLUENE	UGIL			
39100*8270/3520-G	BIS (2-ETHYLHEXYL) PHTHALATE	UG/L	9.6	4.0	5.8
39110*8270/3520-G	DI-N-BUTYLPHTHALATE	UGAL			
34376*8270/3520-G	FLUORANTHENE	UGAL			
34694 8270/3520-G	PHENOL	UGAL			
34205*8310/3520-G	ACENAPHTHENE	UGAL			
34220*8310/3520-G	ANTHRACENE	UG/L			
34526*8310/3520-C	BENZO(A)ANTHRACENE	UG/L	0.009		
14247-8310/3520-G	BENZO(A)PYRENE	NG/L	0.004		
34230*8310/3520-G	BENZO(B)FLUORANTHENE	UG/L	0.005		0.002
34521*8310/3520-G	BENZO(GHI)PERYLENE	UGA,			
34242*8310/3520-G	BENZO(K)FLUORANTHENE	UG/L	0.002		
34320*8310/3520-G	CHRYSENE	UG/L			
34220-8310/3520-G	DIBEN'(A,H)ANTH'CENE	ИСЛ.			
34370-8310/3520-G	FLUORANTHENE	UG/L	0.009		0.007
34403*8310/3520-G	INDENO(1,2,3-CD) PYRENE	UG/L			
34090-8310/3520-G	NAPHTHALENE	UG/L			
2446078310/3520-G	PMENANTHRENE	UGAL			
39909103103520-G	AT DODA	UG/L			
2033016080252046		UG/L			
10110*8080/3520-G		UGAL			
37320*8080/3320+G		UG/L			
107200-8080/3520-G		UG/L	<u> </u>		
30470+20202520-0		UGIL			
1105+6010-C	ALUMINUM TOTAL		00000		
1002*2060-0	ABSENIC TOTAL		89900	33400	23400
1007-6010-0	BAPHIM TOTAL				
1007*6010-0			358	599	360
1014+6010-0	CREANING TOTAL				
103776010-0				109	49.3
1042*6010-0			156	103	31.1
1052+7471-G	I FAD TOTAL		/1.6	90.1	97.3
71900*7476-6			24.4	21.8	17.5
1092-6010-0			0.31	0.26	0.28
70300*160 1-0	RESIDUE DISS (TOP)		208	148	107
1106*6010-0	At TMINUM DISS			373	250
1005*6010-C	RARIIM DISS		70.0		494
1040*6010-G	COPPER DISS		<u>\$.5L</u>	41.9	171
1049*7471.G	LEAD DISS				
1090+6010-0	7INC DISS				
1000 0010-0	C11-01-00	UGIL		I	

.

TAB

Ľ

, . ,

. • <u>Appendix C-Sample Collection</u> Procedures for Surface Water 7 Sectiments

Appendix C Sample Collection Procedures for Surface Water and Sediments

125 110

Surface Water Sampling

At each of the four sampling locations out in the water body, surface water will be collected from two sampling depths. One sample will be collected within the top 24 inches down from the water surface and one at approximately 1 ft above the bottom. Water at these discrete depths will be collected using a 1.2-liter Kemmerer sampler. This sampler is a messenger-activated device constructed of Teflon[®] and plastic. The sample comes into contact only with Teflon.[®]

The device will be cocked open to allow free flow of water as it is lowered by rope to the sample depth. The sample will be contained using a line messenger to trip the closing mechanism. After retrieval, collected water will be dispensed directly into the sample containers. This process will be repeated until all sample bottles are filled. Surface water will be sampled before sediment sampling or other activities that may suspend sediments or disturb the water column. The top surface sample will be collected first. Before being used, all sampling equipment will be decontaminated in accordance with the *QAPP* (ref. 1).

Sediment and Soil Sampling within Surface Water Bodies

Where the vertical distribution of sediment and soil contamination is being investigated in a surface water body, samples will be collected at two depths. One sample will be collected from the top few inches of sediment on the basin bottom, and a second sample will be collected at a depth of approximately 6 to 18 inches beneath the sediments. At the Golf Course Pond (Site 25) and Lake Danielson (Site 26), four locations in each water body will be sampled to evaluate the vertical distribution of contamination in the sediments and soils.

The upper layer of sediment will be collected using a Petite Ponar dredge or similar sampling device. The Petite Ponar is a clamshell-type scoop activated by a counter lever system which will sample 232 square centimeters (cm^2) of sediment up to several centimeters deep. To collect a sediment sample, the sampler will be carefully lowered onto the sediments to minimize disturbance and to allow the device to settle upright. Once the rope is relaxed, the counter lever will function and the device will grab sediment as it is pulled up. After retrieval, the sampler will be opened over a decontaminated stainless steel tray. The collected sediment will be removed with a stainless steel spoon and placed in sample jars. All sampling equipment will be decontaminated in accordance with the QAPP (ref. 1).

The soil below the sediment will be sampled using a Kajak-Brinkhurst (KB) gravity corer. This is a hand-held corer composed of a stainless steel tube with a removable tapered nosepiece at the bottom and a check valve on the top. The check valve allows water to pass through the corer on descent but prevents washout during recovery. A clear, hard plastic sleeve is placed inside the corer to contain the sample and provide for clean removal. The top of the KB corer is connected to sections of galvanized pipe that provide for precise lowering of the device and enable the corer to be pushed by hand into the sediment and

GNV/10016FEE.DOC

underlying soils. The purpose of using the KB corer is to sample beyond the deposited sediment layer and into the underlying soil. When the corer is filled and returned to the sampling platform, the nose piece is unscrewed and the plastic sleeve is carefully removed. Over a stainless steel tray, the soil sample will be extruded from the end containing the desired sample. Care will be taken to prevent mixing of the soil and sediment layers contained within the tube. Samples of soil will be collected either directly from the plastic sleeve or from the stainless steel tray using a stainless steel spoon. All sampling equipment will be decontaminated before use in accordance with the QAPP (ref. 1).

If the sediment layer is found to be extremely thick (greater than 12 inches), thus preventing effective sampling of the underlying soil using the KB corer, an attempt will be made to collect the sample using PVC pipe as a deeper penetrating corer. This will be accomplished by using a 1- to 2-inch PVC pipe of appropriate length; the pipe will be forced into the sediment layers by hand or hammered to an appropriate depth to recover samples of the deeper soil. The upper end of the pipe will be capped before the sample is brought to the surface to prevent the soil from being flushed from the corer. The sample will be collected by shaking or cutting the PVC corer or by any other means needed to retrieve a sample as intact as possible without cross contamination. After the sample is placed in a decontaminated stainless steel tray, the soil will be removed with a stainless steel spoon and placed into the sample jars. All sample collection equipment will be decontaminated in accordance with the QAPP (ref. 1).



